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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Directors’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

The Directors present to the shareholders the annual report together with the audited financial statements
for the financial year (“year”) ended 31 December 2021 of WisdomTree Issuer ICAV (the “ICAV”).

Review of the development of the business

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV is an Irish collective asset-management vehicle constituted as an umbrella fund
with segregated liability between sub-funds with registration number C132923. It was established on
20 September 2011 as a Public Limited Company (“PLC”) and on 6 May 2020 it was changed to an ICAV.
The ICAV has been authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (“Central Bank™) as an Undertaking for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities (“UCITS”) pursuant to the provisions of the European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 (as
amended) and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (section 48(1)) (Undertakings
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (as amended) (together the
“UCITS Regulations”). References to statutes, regulations and laws shall include any amendments
thereto. All capitalised terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the
ICAV’s Prospectus dated 6 May 2020 (the “Prospectus”). WisdomTree Asset Management, Inc acts as
promoter of the ICAV. The promoter is authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
and is registered as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act, 1940, as amended.

As at 31 December 2021, the ICAV comprised 25 active sub-funds, (collectively the “Sub-Funds” or each
individually a “Sub-Fund”), (31 December 2020: 19 active sub-funds). The names and initial launch dates
of the active Sub-Funds are as follows:

Active Sub-Funds, share classes and launch dates

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
USD (“DHS”) 21 October 2014 USD
USD Acc (“DHSA”) 03 November 2016 USD
GBP Hedged Acc (“DHSG”) 01 November 2016 GBP
EUR Hedged Acc (“DHSF”) 07 November 2016 EUR
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
EUR (“EEI”) 21 October 2014 EUR
EUR Acc (“EEIA”) 03 September 2016 EUR
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
EUR (“DFE”) 21 October 2014 EUR
EUR Acc (“DFEA”) 03 September 2016 EUR
WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD (“DEM”) 14 November 2014 USD
USD Acc (“DEMR”) 02 November 2016 USD
WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD (“DGSE”) 14 November 2014 USD
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD Hedged (“DXJ”) 18 May 2015 USD
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Directors’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF (continued)

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD Hedged Acc (“DXJA™) 09 March 2017 USD
GBP Hedged (“DXJP”) 02 November 2015 GBP
CHF Hedged Acc (“DXJD”) 02 February 2016 CHF
EUR Hedged Acc (“DXJF”) 03 November 2015 EUR
JPY Acc (“DXJZ”) 02 November 2015 JPY
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
USD Hedged (“HEDJ”) 18 May 2015 USD
USD Hedged Acc (“HEDK”) 01 November 2016 USD
GBP Hedged (“HEDP”) 02 November 2015 GBP
CHF Hedged Acc (“HEDD”) 02 February 2016 CHF
EUR Acc (“HEDF”) 02 November 2015 EUR
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
GBP (“WUKD”) 28 September 2015 GBP
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD (“WCOG”) 27 April 2016 USD
USD Acc (“WCOA”) 27 April 2016 USD
GBP Hedged Acc (“WCOM”) 14 August 2018 GBP
EUR Hedged Acc (“WCOE”) 14 August 2018 EUR
CHF Hedged Acc (“COMS”) 11 December 2019 CHF
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
USD (“DGRW”) 03 November 2016 USD
USD Acc (“DGRA™) 03 June 2016 USD
WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD (“GGRW”) 02 November 2016 USD
USD Acc (“GGRA™) 03 June 2016 USD
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
EUR (“EGRW?”) 03 November 2016 EUR
EUR Acc (“EGRA”) 29 June 2016 EUR
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD (“CCBO”) 14 May 2018 USD
USD Acc (“COCB”) 14 May 2018 USD
USD Hedged (“CODO”) 21 August 2018 USD
EUR Hedged (“COBO”) 21 August 2018 EUR
GBP Hedged (“COGQO”) 21 August 2018 GBP
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Directors’ Report (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
EUR (“YLD”) 02 July 2018 EUR
EUR Acc (“EYLD”) 02 July 2018 EUR
WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
EUR (“GOVE”) 02 July 2018 EUR
EUR Acc (“WGOV”) 02 July 2018 EUR
WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
USD Acc (“WTAI”) 30 November 2018 USD
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD (“USFR”) 21 March 2019 USD
USD Acc (“TFRN”) 21 March 2019 USD
WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
USD Acc (“WCLD”) 03 September 2019 USD
WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD Acc (“VOLT”) 26 February 2020 USD
WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD Acc (“WCBR”) 25 January 2021 USD
WisdomTree European Union Bond UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
EUR Acc (“EUBO”) 15 February 2021 EUR
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
EUR Acc (“EXAG”) 07 July 2021 EUR
USD Acc (“WXAG”) 06 October 2021 USD
WisdomTree Emerging Markets ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG

Screened UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
USD Acc (“XSOE”) 18 August 2021 USD
WisdomTree Broad Commodities UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date  Currency
USD Acc (“PCOM”) 29 November 2021 USD
WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS ETF

Share classes Launch Date ~ Currency
USD Acc (“WDNA”) 03 December 2021 USD
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Country Stock Exchange listing status

WisdomTree US Equity Income
UCITS ETF - USD (DHS)
WisdomTree US Equity Income
UCITS ETF - USD Acc (DHSA)
WisdomTree US Equity Income
UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged Acc
(DHSG)

WisdomTree US Equity Income
UCITS ETF - EUR Hedged Acc
(DHSF)

WisdomTree Europe Equity Income
UCITS ETF - EUR (EEI)
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income
UCITS ETF - EUR Acc (EEIA)
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap
Dividend UCITS ETF - EUR (DFE)
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap
Dividend UCITS ETF - EUR Acc
(DFEA)

WisdomTree Emerging Markets
Equity Income UCITS ETF - USD
(DEM)

WisdomTree Emerging Markets
Equity Income UCITS ETF - USD
Acc (DEMR)

WisdomTree Emerging Markets
SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF -
USD (DGSE)

WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS
ETF - USD Hedged (DXJ)
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS
ETF - USD Hedged Acc (DXJA)
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS
ETF - GBP Hedged (DXJP)
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS
ETF - CHF Hedged Acc (DXJD)
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS
ETF - EUR Hedged Acc (DXJF)
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS
ETF - JPY Acc (DXJZ)
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS
ETF - USD Hedged (HEDJ)
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS
ETF - USD Hedged Acc (HEDK)
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS
ETF - GBP Hedged (HEDP)
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS
ETF - CHF Hedged Acc (HEDD)
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS
ETF - EUR Acc (HEDF)
WisdomTree UK Equity Income
UCITS ETF - GBP (WUKD)
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity
UCITS ETF - USD (WCOG)
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity
UCITS ETF - USD Acc (WCOA)
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity
UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged Acc
(WCOM)

WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity
UCITS ETF - EUR Hedged Acc
(WCOE)

Ireland

October 21, 2016

November 7, 2016

November 7, 2016

November 9, 2016
October 21, 2016
November 7, 2016

October 21, 2016

November 7, 2016

November 18, 2014

November 7, 2016

November 18, 2014
May 20, 2015
May 20, 2015
November 3, 2015
February 3, 2016
November 4, 2015
November 3, 2015
May 20, 2015
November 7, 2016
November 3, 2015
February 3, 2016
November 3, 2015
October 7, 2015
May 3, 2016

May 3, 2016

August 16, 2018

August 16, 2018

UK

October 24, 2014

November 8, 2016

November 8, 2016

N/A
October 24, 2014
November 8, 2016

October 24, 2014

November 8, 2016

November 19, 2014

November 8, 2016

November 19, 2014
May 21, 2015
March 15,2017
November 4, 2015
N/A

N/A

November 4, 2015
May 21, 2015
November 8, 2016
November 4, 2015
N/A

November 4, 2015
October 8, 2015
May 4, 2016

May 4, 2016

August 17,2018

N/A

Italy

January 20, 2015

November 22, 2016

N/A

November 22, 2016
January 20, 2015
November 22, 2016

January 20, 2015

November 22, 2016

January 20, 2015

November 22, 2016

January 20, 2015
May 21, 2015
N/A

N/A

N/A

November 5, 2015
November 5, 2015
May 21, 2015
N/A

N/A

N/A

November 5, 2015
N/A

N/A

June 9, 2016

N/A

August 17, 2018

Germany

February 26, 2015

November 10, 2016

N/A

November 10, 2016
February 26, 2015
N/A

February 26, 2015

November 10, 2016

February 26, 2015

November 10, 2016

February 26, 2015
May 21, 2015
N/A

N/A

N/A

November 5, 2015
November 5, 2015
May 21, 2015
N/A

N/A

N/A

November 5, 2015
N/A

N/A

June 9, 2016

N/A

August 17,2018

Switzerland

March 10, 2015

December 8, 2016

December 8, 2016

December 8, 2016
March 10, 2015
December 8, 2016

March 10, 2015

December 8, 2016

March 10, 2015

December 8, 2016

March 10, 2015
July 14,2015
N/A

February 4, 2016
February 4, 2016
February 4, 2016
February 4, 2016
July 14,2015
December 8, 2016
February 4, 2016
February 4, 2016
February 4, 2016
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Country Stock Exchange listing status (continued)

WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity
UCITS ETF - CHF Hedged Acc
(COMS)

WisdomTree US Quality Dividend
Growth UCITS ETF - USD (DGRW)
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend
Growth UCITS ETF - USD Acc
(DGRA)

WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend
Growth UCITS ETF - USD (GGRW)
WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend
Growth UCITS ETF - USD Acc
(GGRA)

WisdomTree Eurozone Quality
Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - EUR
(EGRW)

WisdomTree Eurozone Quality
Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - EUR
Acc (EGRA)

WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS
ETF - USD (CCBO)

WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS
ETF - USD Acc (COCB)
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS
ETF - USD Hedged (CODO)
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS
ETF - EUR Hedged (COBO)
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS
ETF - GBP Hedged (COGO)
WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond
ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF -
EUR (YLD)

WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond
ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF -
EUR Acc (EYLD)

WisdomTree EUR Government Bond
ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF -
EUR (GOVE)

WisdomTree EUR Government Bond
ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF -
EUR Acc (WGOV)

WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence
UCITS ETF - USD Acc (WTAI)
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate
Treasury Bond UCITS ETF - USD
(USFR)

WisdomTree USD Floating Rate
Treasury Bond UCITS ETF - USD
Acc (TFRN)

WisdomTree Cloud Computing
UCITS ETF - USD Acc (WCLD)
WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS
ETF - USD Acc (VOLT)
WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS
ETF - USD Acc (WCBR)
WisdomTree European Union Bond
UCITS ETF - EUR Acc (EUBO)
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity
ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF - USD
Acc (WXAG)

Ireland

N/A

November 7, 2016

June 7, 2016

November 7, 2016

June 7, 2016

November 7, 2016

July 4, 2016
May 16, 2018
May 16, 2018
August 23,2018
August 23,2018

August 23, 2018

July 4, 2018

July 4, 2018

July 4, 2018

July 4, 2018

November 30, 2018

March 21, 2019

March 21, 2019
September 3, 2019
February 26, 2020
January 27, 2021

February 2, 2021

October 8, 2021

UK

N/A

November 8, 2016

June 8, 2016

November 8, 2016

June 8, 2016

November 8, 2016

July 5, 2016
May 17,2018
May 17,2018
August 24, 2018
N/A

August 24, 2018

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

December 5, 2018

March 26, 2019

March 26, 2019
September 6, 2019
March 2, 2020
January 28, 2021

N/A

N/A

Italy

N/A

N/A

June 20, 2016

N/A

June 20, 2016

N/A

July 14,2016
June 7, 2018
June 7, 2018
N/A

August 24, 2018

N/A

July 23,2018

July 23,2018

July 23,2018

July 23, 2018

December 11,2018

N/A

N/A

October 4, 2019
March 4, 2020
January 28, 2021

February 18, 2021

N/A

Germany

N/A

N/A

June 20, 2016

N/A

June 20, 2016

N/A

July 14,2016
May 30, 2018
N/A

N/A

August 24, 2018

N/A

July 5, 2018

July 5,2018

July 5, 2018

July 5, 2018

January 11, 2019

N/A

N/A

October 4, 2019
March 4, 2020
January 28, 2021

February 18, 2021

July 12,2021

Switzerland

December 16, 2019

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

March 25, 2021

N/A

N/A
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Directors’ Report (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Country Stock Exchange listing status (continued)

Ireland UK Italy Germany Switzerland

WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity

ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF - EUR

Acc (EXAG) N/A October 11, 2021 N/A October 11, 2021 N/A
WisdomTree Emerging Markets

ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG
Screened UCITS ETF - USD Acc

(XSOE) N/A August 23,2021 August 23, 2021 August 23, 2021 N/A
WisdomTree Broad Commodities

UCITS ETF - USD Acc (PCOM) N/A December 6, 2021 January 10, 2022 December 9, 2021 N/A
WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS

ETF - USD Acc (WDNA) N/A December 9, 2021 January 17, 2022 December 9, 2021 N/A

The Sub-Funds are listed on the following exchanges in each of the above countries:

* Euronext Dublin — Ireland

* London Stock Exchange — United Kingdom
* Borsa Italiana — Italy

* Deutsche Borse — Germany

» SIX Stock Exchange — Switzerland

Euronext Dublin is the primary exchange where all “trade list” and exchanges are disclosed.

Investment policies and objectives

Each of the below indices are referred to as “benchmark™ in relation to the report presented in the
financial statements.

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF
DHS

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree US Equity Income Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTHYNTRU, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DHS).

DHSA

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree US Equity Income Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTHYNTRU, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DHSA).

DHSG

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree US GBP Hedged Equity Income Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTHYEHBT, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: DHSG).

DHSF

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree US EUR Hedged Equity Income Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTHYEHET, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: DHSF).

WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF
EEI

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEHYTE, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: EEI).

10
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Directors’ Report (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Investment policies and objectives (continued)

WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF (continued)

EEIA

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Europe Equity Income Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEHYTE, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: EEIA).

WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF
DFE
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTIDESTE, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DFE).

DFEA

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTIDESTE, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DFEA).

WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF
DEM
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Emerging Markets High Dividend Index (formerly WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity
Income Index) (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEMHUHT, Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: DEM).

DEMR

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEMHUHT, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: DEMR).

WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF
DGSE
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEMSUHT,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: DGSE).

WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF
DXJ
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Japan USD Hedged Equity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTIDJHUT, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DXJ).

DXJP

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Japan GBP Hedged Equity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTIDJHBT, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DXJP).

DXJZ

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Japan Dividend Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTIDJUHT, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DXJZ).

11
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Directors’ Report (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Investment policies and objectives (continued)

WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF (continued)

DXJD

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Japan CHF Hedged Equity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTIDJHFT, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DXJD).

DXJF

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Japan EUR Hedged Equity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTIDJHET, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DXJF).

DXJA

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Japan USD Hedged Equity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTIDJHUT, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: DXJA)

WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF
HEDJ
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Europe USD Hedged Equity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEHIHUT, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: HEDJ).

HEDF

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Europe Equity Index EUR (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEHIET, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: HEDF).

HEDD

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Europe Equity Index CHF Hedged ACC (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEHITEF, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: HEDD).

HEDP

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Europe GBP Hedged Equity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEHITB, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: HEDP).

HEDK

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree USD Hedged Europe Equity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEHIHUT, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: HEDK).

WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF
WUKD

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree UK Equity Income Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTUKEBT, Sub-Fund Ticker
symbol: WUKD).
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Investment policies and objectives (continued)

WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF

wWCoG

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

Optimized Roll Commodity Total Return Index (Index Bloomberg Code: EBCIWTT, Sub-Fund Ticker
symbol: WCOG).

WCO0A

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Optimized Roll Commodity Total Return Index (Index Bloomberg Code: EBCIWTT, Sub-Fund Ticker
symbol: WCOA).

wcom

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Optimized Roll Commodity Total Return Index (Index Bloomberg Code: EBCIWTGT, Sub-Fund Ticker
symbol: WCOM).

WCOE

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Optimized Roll Commodity Total Return Index (Index Bloomberg Code: EBCIWTET, Sub-Fund Ticker
symbol: WCOE).

coMs

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Optimized Roll Commodity Monthly CHF-Hedged Total Return Index (Index Bloomberg
Code: EBCIWTCT, Sub-Fund Ticker symbol: COMS).

WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF
DGRA
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTDGNTRU, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: DGRA).

DGRW

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTDGNTRU, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: DGRW).

WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF
GGRA

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Global Developed Quality Dividend Growth Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTDDGTR,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: GGRA).

GGRW

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTDDGTR, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: GGRW).
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Investment policies and objectives (continued)

WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

EGRA

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEZGET, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: EGRA).

EGRW

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTEZGET, Sub-Fund
Ticker Symbol: EGRW).

WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF
CCBO
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the iBoxx

Contingent Convertible Liquid Developed Europe AT1 Index (Index Bloomberg Code: IBXXCCLI,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: CCBO).

COCB

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the iBoxx
Contingent Convertible Liquid Developed Europe AT1 Index (Index Bloomberg Code: IBXXCCLI,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: COCB).

coDoO

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the iBoxx
Contingent Convertible Liquid Developed Europe AT1 Index USD Hedged (Index Bloomberg Code:
IBXXCCL2, Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: CODO).

COBO

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the iBoxx
Contingent Convertible Liquid Developed Europe AT1 Index EUR Hedged (Index Bloomberg
Code: IBXXCCL7, Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: COBO).

CcoGO

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the iBoxx
Contingent Convertible Liquid Developed Europe ATl Index GBP Hedged (Index Bloomberg
Code: IBXXCCD2, Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: COGO).

WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF
YLD

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Bloomberg Barclays Euro Aggregate Enhanced Yield Bond Index (Index Bloomberg Code: 133852EU,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: YLD).

EYLD

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Bloomberg Barclays Euro Aggregate Enhanced Yield Bond Index (Index Bloomberg Code: 133852EU,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: EYLD).
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Investment policies and objectives (continued)
WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF
GOVE

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Bloomberg Barclays Euro Treasury Enhanced Yield Bond Index (Index Bloomberg Code: I33855EU,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: GOVE).

wGov

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Bloomberg Barclays Euro Treasury Enhanced Yield Bond Index (Index Bloomberg Code: 133855EU,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: WGOV).

WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETF
WTAI

The Share Class seeks to track NASDAQ CTA Artificial Intelligence Index (Index Bloomberg
Code: NQAIT, Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: WTAI).

WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF
USFR
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Treasury Floating Rate Bond Index (Index Bloomberg Code: BTFLTRUU,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: USFR).

TFRN

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the
Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Treasury Floating Rate Bond Index (Index Bloomberg Code: BTFLTRUU,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: TFRN).

WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS ETF
WCLD
The Share Class seeks to track the price and net dividend performance, before fees and expenses, of the

BVP Nasdaq Emerging Cloud Index (Index Bloomberg Code: EMCLOUDN, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: WCLD).

WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF
VOLT
The Share Class seeks to track the price and net dividend performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree Battery Solutions Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTBSIN, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: VOLT).

WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS ETF
WCBR

The Share Class seeks to track the price and net dividend performance, before fees and expenses, of the
WisdomTree Team8 Cybersecurity Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTCBRN, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: WCBR).

WisdomTree European Union Bond UCITS ETF
EUBO

The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the iBoxx
EUR European Union Bond Index (Index Bloomberg Code: BL0O9HRY, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: EUBO).
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Investment policies and objectives (continued)

WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF

WXAG

The Share Class seeks to track the performance, before fees and expenses of the Morgan Stanley RADAR

ex Agriculture & Livestock Commodity Total Return Index (Index Bloomberg Code: MSRXALTR,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: WXAG).

EXAG

The Share Class seeks to track the performance, before fees and expenses of the Morgan Stanley RADAR
ex Agriculture & Livestock Commodity Total Return Index (Index Bloomberg Code: MSRXALTR,
Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: EXAG).

WisdomTree Emerging Markets ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG Screened UCITS ETF
XSOE

The Share Class seeks to track the investment results of emerging market companies that are not
state-owned enterprises (Index Bloomberg Code: EMXSOE, Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: XSOE).

WisdomTree Broad Commodities UCITS ETF
PCOM

The Share Class seeks to track the performance, before fees and expenses of the Bloomberg Commodity
Total Return Index (Index Bloomberg Code: BCOMTR, Sub-Fund Ticker Symbol: PCOM).

WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS ETF
WDNA
The Share Class seeks to track the price and yield performance, before fees and expenses, of the

WisdomTree BioRevolution Index (Index Bloomberg Code: WTDNA, Sub-Fund Ticker
Symbol: WDNA).

Results and activities
The results of operations are detailed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of

Changes in Net Assets. A detailed review of the ICAV’s activities and future developments is contained in
the Investment Managers’ Reports on pages 24 to 43.

Directors
The Directors who held office during and since the end of the financial year are detailed below:

Vincent Dodd (Ireland)*

Denise Kinsella (Ireland)* (resigned on 28 March 2022)

Amit Muni (US) (resigned on 6 May 2021)

Peter Ziemba (US) (Chairperson)

Bryan Governey (Ireland)

Alexis Marinof (UK)

Nadia Samuels (UK) (appointed on 18 February 2021 and resigned on 22 February 2022)
Anne-Marie King (Ireland)* (appointed on 1 December 2021)

Feargal Dempsey (Ireland)* (appointed on 19 January 2022)

* Independent Non-Executive Directors, as defined by the IF Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors are non-executive Directors.
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Going Concern

The Directors’ report summarises the ICAV’s activities, its financial performance and financial position
together with any factors likely to affect its future development. In addition, it discusses the principal risks
and uncertainties it faces. Note 11 to these financial statements summarises the ICAV’s risk and capital
management objectives and policies together with its financial risks. After making enquiries, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the ICAV has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the forseeable future. In addition, the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt upon the ICAV’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Future developments

The ICAV will look to add new sub-funds over the course of the next financial year based on market
opportunities.

Directors’ and ICAV Secretary’s interests

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2021 held shares in various Sub-Funds with an
approximate value of EUR 607,000. At 31 December 2021, Goodbody Secretarial Limited (the
“Secretary”) had no interests in the share capital or debentures of the ICAV. At 31 December 2021, the
subscriber shares are held by WisdomTree UK Limited and WisdomTree Management Limited. Please
refer to Note 8 for Directors’ Remuneration and related party transactions with the Directors.

Distributions

The Directors intend to distribute all or substantially all of the net income (interest and dividends, less
expenses) of the Sub-Funds attributable to distributing shares. Distributions shall be payable in the local
currency of the share class on each Sub-Fund to shareholders. Quarterly distributions will normally be
declared with a view to being paid in March, June, September, and December. Please refer to Note 10 for
distributions paid during the year and Note 23 for distributions declared prior to the year end but paid
subsequent to the year end.

Adequate accounting records

The Directors comply with the ICAV’s obligations to keep adequate accounting records by appointing
competent persons to be responsible for them. The accounting records are kept by State Street Fund
Services (Ireland) Limited, at 78 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland.

Connected persons

Regulation 43(1) of the UCITS Regulations “Restrictions of transactions with connected persons” states
that “A responsible person shall ensure that any transaction between a UCITS and a connected person is
conducted a) at arm’s length; and b) in the best interest of the unit-holders of the UCITS”. As required
under UCITS Regulation 81(4), the Manager, as a responsible person is satisfied that there are in place
arrangements, evidenced by written procedures, to ensure that the obligations that are prescribed by
Regulation 43(1) are applied to all transactions with a connected persons; and all transactions with
connected parties that were entered into during the period to which the report relates complied with the
obligations that are prescribed by Regulation 43(1).
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Connected persons (continued)
The following table details the types of transactions entered into with counterparties that are connected

persons:
DBpes of transactions Counterparties
Administration, registry and transfer agency services State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited
Custody and trustee services State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited
Foreign currency hedging services Assenagon Asset Management SA

Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
Facilities agency and marketing services WisdomTree UK Limited
Promoter and index provider WisdomTree Asset Management Inc.
Management services WisdomTree Management Limited
Investment management services Assenagon Asset Management SA

Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
Employees

The ICAV had no employees during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

Significant events during the financial year

See Note 22 in Notes to the Financial Statements.

Significant events after the financial year end

See Note 23 in Notes to the Financial Statements.

Risk management objective and policies

The main risks arising from the ICAV’s financial instruments are market price, interest rate, foreign
currency, liquidity and credit risk. For further information on risk management objectives and policies,
please see Note 11 of these financial statements.

Publication of Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the ICAV’s audited financial statements are published on the
ICAV’s website and have delegated this responsibility to the Manager. Legislation in Ireland governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Corporate Governance Statement
The ICAV is subject to corporate governance practices imposed by:

(1) The ICAV Act 2015 which is available for inspection at the registered office of the ICAV and may
also be obtained at www.irishstatutebook.ie.

(ii))  The Instrument of Incorporation of the ICAV which are available for inspection at the registered
office of the ICAV and at the Companies Registration Office in Ireland.

(iii)  The European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011, as amended, and under The Central Bank (Supervision And Enforcement) Act
2013 (Section 48(1) (Undertakings For Collective Investment In Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2019), which can be obtained from the Central Bank’s website at www.centralbank.ie
and are available for inspection at the registered office of the ICAV.
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Corporate Governance Statement (continued)

The ICAV has assessed the measures included in the Irish Funds Corporate Governance Code which may
be adopted on a voluntary basis by Irish authorised collective investment schemes. The Directors adopted
the corporate governance practices and procedures in the IF Code with effect from 10 December 2014.
The IF Code is available for inspection at the registered office of the ICAV and may also be obtained at
www.irishfunds.ie.

Internal Control and Risk Management Systems in Relation to Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control and risk management
systems of the ICAV in relation to the financial reporting process. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of error or fraud in achieving the ICAV’s financial reporting objectives and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss and relies on
the operating controls of the service providers.

The Board has procedures in place which are designed to ensure that all relevant adequate accounting
records are properly maintained and are readily available, including production of annual and half yearly
financial statements. The Board has appointed State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited, (the
“Administrator”) to maintain the books and records of the ICAV. The Administrator is authorised and
regulated by the Central Bank and must comply with the rules imposed by the Central Bank. From time to
time, the Board of Directors examines and evaluates the Administrator’s financial accounting and
reporting routines. The annual financial statements of the ICAV are produced by the Administrator. They
are required to be approved by the Board and the annual and half yearly financial statements of the ICAV
are required to be filed with the Central Bank.

The Board is responsible for the review and approval of the annual financial statements as set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities. The statutory financial statements are required to be audited by
independent auditors who report annually to the Board on their findings.

The Board periodically considers the independent auditors’ performance, qualifications and
independence. As part of its review procedures, the Board receives presentations and reports on the audit
process. The Board evaluates and discusses significant accounting and reporting issues as the need arises.

Dealings with Shareholders

The convening and conduct of shareholders’ meetings are governed by the Instrument of Incorporation of
the ICAV and the ICAV Act. Although the Directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting of the
ICAV at any time, the Directors were required to convene the first annual general meeting of the ICAV
within eighteen months of incorporation and fifteen months of the date of the previous annual general
meeting thereafter, provided that an annual general meeting is held once in each year within six months of
the end of each accounting period of the ICAV.

At least twenty-one clear days’ notice of every annual general meeting and any meeting convened for the
passing of a special resolution must be given to shareholders and fourteen days’ notice must be given in
the case of any other general meeting, unless the auditors of the ICAV and all the shareholders of the
ICAV entitled to attend and vote agree to shorter notice. Two shareholders present either in person or by
proxy constitutes a quorum at a general meeting. To every separate general meeting of a Fund or Class the
provisions of these Articles relating to general meetings shall apply but so that the necessary quorum at
any such meeting other than an adjourned meeting shall be two persons holding or representing by proxy
participating shares of the Fund or Class in question and, at an adjourned meeting, one person holding
participating shares of the Fund or Class in question or his proxy. Any holder of participating shares of the
Fund or Class in question present in person or by proxy may demand a poll.

Every holder of participating shares or non-participating shares present, in person or by proxy who votes
on a show of hands is entitled to one vote. On a poll, every holder of participating shares present, in person
or by proxy, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held by him, and every holder of
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Dealings with Shareholders (continued)

non-participating shares is entitled to one vote in respect of all non-participating shares held by him. At
any general meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting is decided on a show of hands unless,
before or upon the declaration of the result of the show of hands, a poll is demanded by the Chairman or
by any shareholder present, in person or by proxy. Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration by the
Chairman that a resolution has been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, or
not carried by a particular majority and an entry to that effect in the minutes of the meeting shall be
conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour
of or against such a resolution. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn before the poll is taken but only
with the consent of the Chairman, and a demand so withdrawn shall not be taken to have invalidated the
result of a show of hands declared before the demand was made.

Shareholders may resolve to sanction an ordinary resolution or special resolution at a shareholders’
meeting. Alternatively, a resolution in writing signed by all of the shareholders and holders of
non-participating shares for the time being entitled to attend and vote on such resolution at a general
meeting of the ICAV, will be valid and effective for all purposes as if the resolution had been passed at a
general meeting of the ICAV duly convened and held. An ordinary resolution of the ICAV (or of the
shareholders of a particular fund or class of shares) requires a simple majority of the votes cast by the
shareholders voting, in person or by proxy, at the meeting at which the resolution is proposed. A special
resolution of the ICAV (or of the shareholders of a particular fund or class of shares) requires a majority
of not less than 75% of shareholders present, in person or by proxy, and voting in general meeting in order
to pass a special resolution including a resolution to amend the Instrument of Incorporation.

Board composition and activities

In accordance with the I[CAV Act and the Instrument of Incorporation, unless otherwise determined by an
ordinary resolution of the ICAV in general meeting, the number of Directors may not be less than two.
Currently the Board comprises 8 non-executive Directors of whom 4 are independent. Details of the
current Directors are set out above, under the heading “Directors”.

The business of the ICAV is managed by the Directors, who exercise all such powers of the ICAV as are
not by the ICAV Act or by the Instrument of Incorporation of the ICAV required to be exercised by the
ICAV in general meeting.

The Board is responsible for the ICAV’s overall direction and strategy and to this end it reserves the
decision making power on issues such as the determination of medium and long term goals, review of
delegates performance, organisational structure and capital needs and commitments to achieve the
ICAV s strategic goals. To achieve these responsibilities, the Board meets on a quarterly basis to review
the operations of the ICAV, address matters of strategic importance and to receive reports from the
Administrator, Depositary and the Investment Managers. However, a Director may, and the Secretary on
the requisition of a Director will, at any time summon a meeting of the Directors and ad hoc meetings, in
addition to the four meetings, which are convened as required.

Questions arising at any meeting of the Directors are determined by the Chairman. In the case of an
equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll
is demanded shall be entitled to a second or casting vote. The quorum necessary for the transaction of
business at a meeting of the Directors is two.

There were no sub-committees of the Board in operation during the financial year or at the financial year
end.
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Diversity Report

The Board is conscious of the importance of diversity to enhance its operation. During the Director
selection process, the Board is committed to selecting those with diversity of business skills, experience
and gender and candidates for appointment are considered based on these attributes. The Board’s
principle is that each member of the Board must have the skills, experience, knowledge and overall
suitability that will enable each director to contribute individually, and as part of the Board team, to the
effectiveness of the Board. Subject to that overriding principle, the Board believes that diversity of
experience and approach, including educational and professional background, gender, age and
geographical provenance, amongst board members is of great value when considering overall board
balance in making new appointments to the Board. In consideration of the nature, scale and complexity of
the ICAV, the Board’s objective is to ensure that it delivers the business strategy while (i) it maintains a
balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity at Board member level, (i) all selection decisions
and succession planning for appointments to the Board are based on merit, skills, knowledge, experience
and independence, (iii) recruitment is fair and non-discriminatory. The current Board composition
reflects diverse age, gender, educational and professional backgrounds. The ICAV’s policy in regards to
diversity is to take into consideration the above factors when considering new appointments to the Board.

Uncertainty regarding United Kingdom’s exit from the EU

The United Kingdom (“U.K.”) left the European Union (“EU”) on 31 January 2020, referred to as Brexit,
subject to transitional arrangements which ended on 31 December 2020. The transition period ended with
arrangements in place between the UK. and the Member States of the EU. Such an exit from the EU is
unprecedented and the medium to long-term consequences for our business remain uncertain. Among
other things, the U.K.’s departure from the EU could lead to instability, including volatility, in the foreign
exchange markets. Deteriorating business, consumer or investor confidence could lead to (i) reduced
levels of business activity, (ii) higher levels of default rates and impairment and (iii) mark to market losses
in trading portfolios resulting from changes in credit ratings, share prices and solvency of counterparties.
This uncertainty also could impact the broader global economy, including by reducing investor
confidence and driving volatility. No assurance can be given that such matters would not adversely affect
the market value and/or the liquidity of the securities of the Sub-Funds in the secondary market and/or the
ability of the Sub-Funds to satisfy its obligations.

Conflict in Ukraine

On 24 February 2022, Russia engaged in military actions in the sovereign territory of Ukraine. The
directors and the ICAV’s delegates are closely monitoring developments that may impact financial
markets including sanctions, actions by governments and developments of the crisis, as well as the impact
on the Sub-Funds.

COVID-19

Global financial markets experienced a significant decline at the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic.
While the markets have since recovered, the ultimate duration of the pandemic and its short-term and
long-term impact on the global economy is unknown. Mutations in the virus and negative global
economic consequences arising from the pandemic, among other factors, could have a future adverse
impact on the global financial markets. Negative market reactions could negatively impact the Net Asset
Values of the Sub-Funds.

The directors and the ICAV’s delegates continue to monitor the advice and developments relating to
COVID-19, which is fluid and rapidly changing. The WisdomTree group has, and continues to implement
measures to maintain the ongoing safety and well-being of employees, whilst continuing to operate
business as usual.
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Relevant audit information

As at the date this Directors’ Report was approved and signed each Director is satisfied that:
(a)  there is no relevant audit information of which the ICAV’s statutory auditors are unaware; and

(b)  he/she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make
herself or himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the ICAV s statutory
auditors are aware of that information; and

(c)  where “relevant audit information” means information needed by the ICAVs statutory auditors in
connection with preparing their report.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report and the financial statements in
accordance with Irish law and the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the “UCITS Regulations”).

Irish law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”).

Under Irish law the Directors shall not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the ICAV’s assets, liabilities and financial position as at the end of the financial
year and of the profit or loss of the ICAV for the financial year.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and ensure that
they contain the additional information required by the ICAV Act; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the ICAV will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to:

» correctly record and explain the transactions of the ICAV;

* enable, at any time, the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the ICAV to be
determined with reasonable accuracy; and

* enable the Directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act before
conversion to ICAV and ICAV Act 2015 after conversion to ICAV and enable those financial statements
to be audited.

In this regard State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator’’) has been appointed for
the purpose of maintaining adequate accounting records. Accordingly, the accounting records are kept at
the following address:

State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited
78 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay

Dublin 2

Ireland

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the ICAV, and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. In this regard they have entrusted
the assets of the ICAV to State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary”), at the
below address, who has been appointed as Depositary to the ICAV pursuant to the terms of a Depositary
Agreement.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Directors’ Report (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities (continued)

State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited
78 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay

Dublin 2

Ireland

Independent auditor

The auditors, Ernst & Young, were appointed by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2013 to audit the
financial statements for the year ending 30 November 2012 and subsequent financial periods. The period
of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 9 years.
Ernst & Young will continue in office in accordance with Section 125 (2) of the ICAV Act 2015.

On behalf of the Directors:

DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
Anne—Hoiie king %
0D4E3CDCESBE482... 483CBIACOF44444...
Anne-Marie King Feargal Dempsey

Date: 5 April 2022
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference
Tracking difference is defined as the difference in returns between a fund and its benchmark index.

The investment management approach is to buy a portfolio of securities that as far as practicable consist
of the securities or a sample thereof that make up the benchmark index, in similar proportion to the
weights represented in the index.

Transaction costs from rebalancing and cash management can have an impact on the Sub-Funds’ tracking
difference. Depending on the underlying circumstances, these can result in either positive or negative
tracking differences.

In addition to the above, the Sub-Funds may also show a tracking difference due to the withholding tax
rate suffered by the Sub-Funds on any income received from their investments. The level and quantum of
tracking difference arising due to withholding taxes depends on various factors such as any reclaims filed
on behalf of the Sub-Funds with the various tax authorities and any benefits obtained by the Sub- Funds
under a tax treaty.

The table below compares the Sub-Funds’ performance against the performance of the relevant
benchmark index during the financial year ended 31 December 2021. An explanation for the difference
gross of the Total Expense Ratio (“TER”) is provided:

Fund Fund  Benchmark TER
return_for return for return for Tracking (Annual Tracking
the year the year the period  difference  or pro rata  difference
ended ended ended Net of since Gross of
31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2021 TER  Inception) TER  Explanation of the
Share Class % % % % % %  tracking difference
WisdomTree US (5.75) 23.11 22.84 0.22 (0.29) 0.51  Outperformance is
Equity Income driven by
UCITS ETF - differences in tax
DHS treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by the negative
impact from cash
drag.
WisdomTree US (5.78) 23.11 22.84 0.22 (0.29) 0.51  Outperformance is
Equity Income driven by
UCITS ETF - differences in tax
DHSA treatment between
the fund and the

benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by the negative
impact from cash
drag.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Investment Manager’s Report (continued)

Irish Life Investment Managers Limited

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Fund Fund  Benchmark
return_for return for return for
the year the year the period
ended ended ended
31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2021
Share Class % % %
WisdomTree US (7.91) 22.43 22.28
Equity Income
UCITS ETF -
DHSG
WisdomTree US (7.19) 21.88 21.73
Equity Income
UCITS ETF -
DHSF
WisdomTree (18.25) 18.90 18.89
Europe Equity
Income UCITS
ETF - EEI
WisdomTree (18.28) 18.86 18.89
Europe Equity
Income UCITS
ETF - EEIA
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Tracking
difference

Net of

TER
%

0.12

0.13

(0.03)

(0.03)

TER
(Annual

or pro rata
since
Inception)
%

(0.35)

(0.35)

(0.29)

(0.29)

Tracking
difference

Gross of

TER
%

0.47

0.48

0.26

0.26

Explanation of the
tracking difference

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by the negative
impact from cash
drag and the hedge
impact.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by the negative
impact from cash
drag and the hedge
impact.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Share Class

WisdomTree
Europe SmallCap
Dividend UCITS
ETF - DFE

WisdomTree
Europe SmallCap
Dividend UCITS
ETF - DFEA

WisdomTree

Emerging Markets

Equity Income
UCITS ETF -
DEM

Fund
return_for
the year

Fund
return for
the year

Benchmark
return for
the period
ended ended ended
31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2021
% % %

(4.63) 27.98 28.77

(4.64) 27.97 28.77

(6.80) 13.76 14.88
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Tracking
difference
Net of
TER

%

(0.62)

(0.62)

(1.01)

TER
(Annual

or pro rata
since
Inception)
%

(0.38)

(0.38)

(0.46)

Tracking
difference
Gross of
TER

%

(0.24)

(0.24)

(0.55)

Explanation of the
tracking difference

Underperformance
is primarily driven
by the negative
impact of cash
drag and to a
lesser degree
trading costs. This
was somewhat
offset by positive
impacts from
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark.

Underperformance
is primarily driven
by the negative
impact of cash
drag and to a
lesser degree
trading costs. This
was somewhat
offset by positive
impacts from
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark.

Underperformance
is driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark, the
impact of trading
costs, the negative
impact from cash
drag and a
negative impact
from pricing
differences.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Fund Fund  Benchmark TER
return_for return for return for Tracking (Annual Tracking
the year the year the period  difference  or pro rata  difference
ended ended ended Net of since Gross of
31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2021 TER  Inception) TER  Explanation of the
Share Class % % % % % %  tracking difference
WisdomTree (6.83) 13.72 14.88 (1.02) (0.46) (0.56) Underperformance
Emerging Markets is driven by
Equity Income differences in tax
UCITS ETF - treatment between
DEMR the fund and the
benchmark, the
impact of trading
costs, the negative
impact from cash
drag and a
negative impact
from pricing
differences.
WisdomTree 4.87 14.37 15.97 (1.40) (0.54) (0.86) Underperformance
Emerging Markets is driven by
SmallCap differences in tax
Dividend UCITS treatment between
ETF - DGSE the fund and the
benchmark, the
impact of trading
costs and the
negative impact
from cash drag.
WisdomTree 2.82 18.04 18.44 (0.33) (0.48) 0.15  Outperformance is
Japan Equity partially driven by
UCITS ETF - DXJ differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark and
partially explained
by a positive
impact from cash
drag.
WisdomTree 2.81 18.03 18.44 (0.35) (0.48) 0.13  Outperformance is
Japan Equity partially driven by
UCITS ETF - differences in tax
DXIJA treatment between
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the fund and the
benchmark and
partially explained
by a positive
impact from cash
drag.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Fund Fund  Benchmark TER
return_for return for return for Tracking (Annual Tracking
the year the year the period  difference  or pro rata  difference
ended ended ended Net of since Gross of
31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2021 TER  Inception) TER  Explanation of the
Share Class % % % % % %  tracking difference

WisdomTree 1.44 17.74 18.08 (0.28) (0.45) 0.17  Outperformance is

Japan Equity partially driven by

UCITS ETF - differences in tax

DXJP treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark and
partially explained
by a positive
impact from cash
drag.

WisdomTree 1.36 17.29 17.62 (0.28) (0.45) 0.17  Outperformance is

Japan Equity partially driven by

UCITS ETF - differences in tax

DXJD treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark and
partially explained
by a positive
impact from cash
drag.

WisdomTree 0.77 17.10 17.57 (0.39) (0.45) 0.06  Outperformance is

Japan Equity partially driven by

UCITS ETF - differences in tax

DXJF treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark and
partially explained
by a positive
impact from cash
drag. This is
somewhat offset
by the hedge
impact.

WisdomTree 7.42 5.89 6.16 (0.25) (0.40) 0.15  Outperformance is

Japan Equity partially driven by

UCITS ETF - differences in tax

DXJZ treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark and
partially explained
by a positive
impact from cash
drag.
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Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Fund
return_for
the year
ended
31/12/2020
Share Class %
WisdomTree (2.59)
Europe Equity
UCITS ETF -
HEDIJ
WisdomTree (2.50)
Europe Equity
UCITS ETF -
HEDK
WisdomTree (4.34)
Europe Equity
UCITS ETF -
HEDP
WisdomTree (4.06)
Europe Equity
UCITS ETF -
HEDD
WisdomTree (4.01)
Europe Equity
UCITS ETF -
HEDF

Fund
return for
the year
ended
31/12/2021
%

23.71

23.68

23.56

22.68

23.05

Benchmark
return for
the period
ended
31/12/2021
%

24.23

24.23

23.77

22.93

23.26
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Tracking
difference
Net of
TER

%

(0.43)

(0.44)

(0.18)

0.21)

(0.17)

TER
(Annual

or pro rata
since
Inception)
%

(0.58)

(0.58)

(0.35)

(0.35)

(0.32)

Tracking
difference
Gross of
TER

%

0.15

0.14

0.17

0.14

0.15

Explanation of the
tracking difference

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1A33F37A-3740-49AE-8BF3-49C9C174E5D8

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)

Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Fund
return_for
the year
ended
31/12/2020
Share Class %
WisdomTree UK (21.33)
Equity Income
UCITS ETF -
WUKD
WisdomTree US 13.34
Quality Dividend
Growth UCITS
ETF - DGRW
WisdomTree US 13.32
Quality Dividend
Growth UCITS
ETF - DGRA
WisdomTree 16.29
Global Quality
Dividend Growth
UCITS ETF -
GGRW
WisdomTree 16.27
Global Quality
Dividend Growth
UCITS ETF -
GGRA

Fund
return for
the year
ended
31/12/2021
%

16.26

24.36

24.36

19.27

19.27

Benchmark TER
return for Tracking (Annual Tracking
the period  difference  or pro rata  difference
ended Net of since Gross of
31/12/2021 TER  Inception) TER
% % % %

1695  (0.66) 0.29)  (0.37)

2453 (0.14) (0.33) 0.19

2453 (0.13) (0.33) 0.20

1972 (0.38) (0.38) -

1972 (0.38) (0.38) -
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Explanation of the
tracking difference

Underperformance
is driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark, the
impact of trading
costs and the
negative impact
from cash drag.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by the negative
impact from cash
drag.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by the negative
impact from cash
drag.

Performance is in
line with the
benchmark.

Performance is in
line with the
benchmark.
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Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Share Class

WisdomTree
Eurozone Quality
Dividend Growth
UCITS ETF -
EGRW

WisdomTree
Eurozone Quality
Dividend Growth
UCITS ETF -
EGRA

WisdomTree EUR
Aggregate Bond
ESG Enhanced
Yield UCITS ETF
- YLD

WisdomTree EUR
Aggregate Bond
ESG Enhanced
Yield UCITS ETF
-EYLD

WisdomTree EUR
Government Bond
ESG Enhanced
Yield UCITS ETF
- GOVE

WisdomTree EUR
Government Bond
ESG Enhanced
Yield UCITS ETF
- WGOV

WisdomTree
Artificial
Intelligence
UCITS ETF -
WTAI

Fund

return_for
the year

ended

31/12/2020

%
5.86

5.85

4.78

4.78

6.32

6.31

74.93

Fund

return for
the year

ended

31/12/2021
%

25.25

25.25

(3.38)

(3.38)

(4.16)

(4.16)

15.29

Benchmark
return for
the period
ended
31/12/2021
%

25.42

25.42

(3.05)

(3.05)

(4.03)

(4.03)

15.73
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Tracking
difference
Net of
TER

%

(0.14)

(0.14)

(0.34)

(0.34)

(0.14)

(0.13)

(0.38)

TER
(Annual

or pro rata
since
Inception)
%

(0.29)

(0.29)

(0.18)

(0.18)

(0.16)

(0.16)

(0.30)

Tracking
difference
Gross of
TER

%

0.15

0.15

(0.16)

(0.16)

0.02

0.03

(0.08)

Explanation of the
tracking difference

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.

Outperformance is
driven by
differences in tax
treatment between
the fund and the
benchmark. This is
somewhat offset
by cash drag and
trading costs.

Underperformance
is driven by nature
of fund being
optimized.

Underperformance
is driven by nature
of fund being
optimized.

Performance is in
line with the
benchmark.

Performance is in
line with the
benchmark.

Performance is in
line with the
benchmark.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Fund Fund  Benchmark TER
return_for return for return for Tracking (Annual Tracking
the year the year the period  difference  or pro rata  difference
ended ended ended Net of since Gross of
31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2021 TER  Inception) TER  Explanation of the
Share Class % % % % % %  tracking difference
WisdomTree USD 0.41 (0.04) 0.12 (0.16) (0.15) (0.01) Performance is in
Floating Rate line with the
Treasury Bond benchmark.
UCITS ETF -
USFR
WisdomTree USD 0.42 (0.04) 0.12 (0.16) (0.15) (0.01)  Performance is in
Floating Rate line with the
Treasury Bond benchmark.
UCITS ETF -
TFRN
WisdomTree 109.08 (3.29) (2.74) (0.57) (0.40) (0.17)  Underperformance
Cloud Computing driven by trading
UCITS ETF - costs from
WCLD rebalance on
22 February 2021.
WisdomTree 77.36 13.91 14.27 (0.32) (0.40) 0.08 Performance is in
Battery Solutions line with the
UCITS ETF - benchmark.
VOLT
WisdomTree - 4.67 5.40 (0.69) (0.42) (0.27)  Underperformance
Cybersecurity is primarily driven
UCITS ETF - by differences in
WCBR* tax treatment
between the fund
and the
benchmark, the
negative impact
from cash drag
and trading costs.
WisdomTree - (4.18) (4.34) 0.16 (0.14) 0.30  Outperformance
European Union due to pricing
Bond UCITS ETF differences
- EUBO** between SS and
benchmark in
January/February
2021. Issue
resolved in March.
WisdomTree - (1.98) (1.79) (0.19) (0.12) (0.07)  Performance is in
Emerging Markets line with the
ex-State-Owned benchmark.
Enterprises ESG
Screened UCITS

ETF - XSOE***
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference (continued)

Fund Fund  Benchmark TER
return_for return for return for Tracking (Annual Tracking
the year the year the period  difference  or pro rata  difference
ended ended ended Net of since Gross of
31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2021 TER  Inception) TER  Explanation of the
Share Class % % % % % %  tracking difference
WisdomTree - 343 343 - (0.03) 0.03  Performance is in
BioRevolution line with the
UCITS ETF - benchmark.

* From 25 January 2021 (date of inception).
**  From 15 February 2021 (date of inception).
**%  From 18 August 2021 (date of inception).
*#%% From 3 December 2021 (date of inception).

Tracking Error

The Tracking Error for each Sub-Fund represents the annualised volatility of the daily differences
between the returns of the Sub-Fund and the returns of its benchmark index for the financial year ended
31 December 2021.

The table below lists the Tracking Error (both anticipated and realised) and an explanation of the
divergence for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

TE 1Y
(annualized)/
Anticipated TE Since  Explanation of
Product Name (Annualized) inception  Divergence (if any)
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS up to 2% 0.22%  Within tolerance
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHSA up to 2% 0.22% Within tolerance
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHSG up to 2% 0.45% Within tolerance
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHSF up to 2% 0.89%  Within tolerance
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF - EEI up to 2% 0.27%  Within tolerance
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF - EEIA up to 2% 0.27% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF -
DFE up to 2% 0.30% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF -
DFEA up to 2% 0.30% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS
ETF - DEM up to 2% 0.52% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS
ETF - DEMR up to 2% 0.52% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend
UCITS ETF - DGSE up to 2% 0.56%  Within tolerance
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - DXJ up to 2% 0.83% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - DXJA up to 2% 0.84% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - DXJP up to 2% 0.33% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - DXJD up to 2% 0.36% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - DXJF up to 2% 0.34% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - DXJZ up to 2% 0.49% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - HEDJ up to 2% 0.43% Within tolerance
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - HEDK up to 2% 0.43% Within tolerance
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Tracking Error (continued)

Anticipated TE
Product Name (Annualized)
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - HEDP up to 2%
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - HEDD up to 2%
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - HEDF up to 2%
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF - WUKD up to 2%
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF
- DGRW up to 2%
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF
- DGRA up to 2%
WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS
ETF - GGRW up to 2%
WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS
ETF - GGRA up to 2%
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS
ETF - EGRW up to 2%
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS
ETF - EGRA up to 2%
WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced
Yield UCITS ETF - YLD up to 2%
WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced
Yield UCITS ETF - EYLD up to 2%
WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced
Yield UCITS ETF - GOVE up to 2%
WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced
Yield UCITS ETF - WGOV up to 2%
WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETF - WTAI up to 2%
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS
ETF - TFRN up to 2%
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS
ETF - USFR up to 2%
WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS ETF - WCLD up to 2%
WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF - VOLT up to 2%
WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS ETF - WCBR* up to 2%
WisdomTree European Union Bond UCITS ETF -
EUBO** up to 2%
WisdomTree Emerging Markets ex-State-Owned
Enterprises ESG Screened UCITS ETF - XSOE*** up to 2%
WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS ETF - WDNA**** up to 2%

* From 25 January 2021 (date of inception).
**  From 15 February 2021 (date of inception).
***  From 18 August 2021 (date of inception).
*#4% From 3 December 2021 (date of inception).
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TE 1Y
(annualized)/
Since
inception
0.19%
0.18%
0.17%
0.43%
0.12%
0.12%
0.14%
0.14%
0.14%
0.14%
0.30%
0.30%
0.23%

0.23%
0.48%

0.17%
0.17%
0.14%
0.51%
0.35%
0.81%

0.61%
0.11%

Explanation of
Divergence (if any)
‘Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance

Within tolerance

Within tolerance
Within tolerance

Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance
Within tolerance

Within tolerance

Within tolerance
Within tolerance
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Performance

The WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned 13.72% at net asset
value (NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Most sectors provided
positive performance contributions. The fund benefitted from its position in Financials which contributed
4.49%, while the biggest detractors to performance were Real Estate which contributed (0.74%). Taiwan
was the top performing region with a contribution of 8.67%.

The WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned 15.29% at net asset value
(NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Information Technology
contributed most of the returns, with a 14.06% return. The U.S. was the region that added most to
performance (9.52%).

The WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF - EUR Acc returned 18.86% at net asset value
(NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Almost all sectors provided
positive performance contributions. The fund benefitted from its position in Financials which contributed
4.88%, followed by Utilities which contributed 3.24%. The United Kingdom was the top performing
country with a contribution of 5.78%.

The WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - EUR Acc returned 25.25% at net
asset value (NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Most sectors
provided positive performance contributions. The fund benefitted from its position in Information
Technology which contributed 7.23%, followed by Industrials, which contributed 4.91%. The biggest
detractors to performance were Energy which contributed (1.39%). France was the top performing
country with a contribution of 8.44%.

The WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF returned 16.26% at net asset value (NAV) from the time
period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Most sectors provided positive performance
contributions. The fund benefitted from its position in Utilities which contributed 3.24% followed by
Consumer Staples which contributed 2.61%.

The WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned 13.91% at net asset value (NAV)
from the time period of 1 January 2021 through31 December 2021. The fund benefitted from its position
in Materials which contributed 10.11%. The next largest performance was Industrials which added
3.93%. The biggest detractors to performance were Information Technology which contributed (2.00%).
China was the top performing country with a contribution of 11.78%.

The WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned 24.36% at net asset
value (NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Almost all sectors
provided positive performance contributions. The fund benefitted from its position in Information
Technology which contributed 8.23%, followed by Health Care which contributed 5.32%.

The WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned (3.29%) at net asset value (NAV)
from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Information Technology accounted
for most of the funds returns, with a (2.83%) return.

The WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned 23.11% at net asset value (NAV)
from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Almost all sectors provided positive
performance contributions. The fund benefitted most from its position in Financials which contributed
5.99%. Next largest contributor was Health Care which returned 5.75%. The only detractor to
performance came from Communication Services which contributed (0.63%).

The WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - JPY Acc returned 5.89% at net asset value (NAV) from the
time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. The fund benefitted from its position in
Industrials which contributed 3.10%, followed by Information Technology which added 2.95%. The
biggest detractors to performance were Health Care which contributed (1.82%).
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Performance (continued)

The WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned 19.27% at net asset
value (NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Almost all sectors
provided positive performance contributions. The fund benefitted from its position in Information
Technology which contributed 7.15%, followed by Health Care which added 3.65% and Industrials which
contributed 3.47%. The USA was the best performing country with a contribution of 13.58%.

The WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - USD returned 14.37% at net asset
value (NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. The fund benefitted
from its position in Information Technology which contributed 5.81%, followed by Materials which
contributed 4.05%. Taiwan was the top performing country with a contribution of 10.22%.

The WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - EUR Acc returned 27.97% at net asset value
(NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Almost all sectors provided
positive performance contributions. The fund benefitted from its position in Industrials which contributed
7.73%, followed by Health Care which added 3.93% and Financials which added 3.60%. Sweden was the
top performing country with 7.71%.

The WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - EUR Acc returned 23.05% at net asset value (NAV) from
the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Most sectors provided positive
performance contributions. The fund benefitted from its position in Information Technology which
contributed 6.18%. Materials contributed 5.32% and Industrials 4.70%. The biggest detractors to
performance were Financials which contributed (0.48%). The Netherlands was the top performing
country at 7.46%, followed by France at 7.28%.

The WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned 4.67% at net asset value (NAV) from
the time period of 25 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Information Technology was responsible
for the majority of the fund’s performance over the period.

The WisdomTree Emerging Markets ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG Screened UCITS ETF - USD Acc
returned (1.98%) at net asset value (NAV) from the time period of 18 August 2021 through 31 December
2021. There was an even split between positive and negative sectors. The fund benefitted from its position
in Information Technology which contributed 1.85% while the biggest detractors to performance were
Consumer Discretionary which contributed (1.89%). Taiwan was the top performing country with a
contribution of 1.83%

The WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned 3.43% at net asset value (NAV) from
the time period of 3 December 2021 through 31 December 2021. The fund benefitted most from its
position in Health Care which contributed 2.94%. The USA was the best performing country with a
contribution of 2.75%.

Bonds

The WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF - USD Acc returned (0.04%) at net asset
value (NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. The Fund is fully
invested in U.S. Floating Rate Notes.

The WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF - EUR Acc returned (3.38%) at net
asset value (NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. Italy was the
biggest detractors from fund performance with a return of (0.85%), followed by France which contributed
(0.67%).

The WisdomTree EUR Government Bond Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF - EUR Acc returned (4.16%) at
net asset value (NAV) from the time period of 1 January 2021 through 31 December 2021. France was the
biggest detractors from fund performance with a return of (1.43%), followed by Italy which contributed
(0.95%).

36



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1A33F37A-3740-49AE-8BF3-49C9C174E5D8

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Performance (continued)

The WisdomTree European Union Bond UCITS ETF - EUR Acc returned (4.18%) at net asset value
(NAV) from the time period of 15 February 2021 through 31 December 2021. The Fund is fully invested
in German Bonds.

Irish Life Investment Managers Limited
Beresford Court

Beresford Place

Dublin 1

Ireland

January 2022
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Reporting period: 1 January 2021 — 31 December 2021

Tracking Difference

Tracking difference is defined as the difference in returns between a fund and its benchmark index.
Among others, management fees (TER), investment fees like swap fees and transaction costs, replication
accuracy and other factors can have an impact on the Sub-Funds’ tracking difference. Depending on the
underlying circumstances, these can result in either positive or negative tracking difference.

Tracking Error

The tracking error for each Sub-Fund represents the annualised volatility of the daily differences between
the returns of the Sub-Fund and the returns of its benchmark index for the period from 1 January
2021 until 31 December 2021. During the reporting period, the actual annualised tracking errors for all
Fund’s share classes were within the tolerance level for anticipated tracking error as per each Sub-Fund’s
Supplement (up to 2%).

The table below compares the Sub-Funds’ performance against the performance of the relevant
benchmark index during the abovementioned period. An explanation for the difference gross of the Total
Expense Ratio (“TER”) is provided as well. The table also shows the annualised tracking error for the

period from 1 January 2021 until 31 December 2021.

Sub-Fund

WisdomTree
Enhanced
Commodity UCITS
ETF - WCOG

WisdomTree
Enhanced
Commodity UCITS
ETF - WCOA

WisdomTree
Enhanced
Commodity UCITS
ETF - WCOM

Fund return
Jor the
year ended
31/12/2020

1.77%

1.76%

(0.07%)

Fund return
Jfor the
year ended
31/12/2021

26.40%

26.40%

25.30%

Benchmark
return

Jor the
year ended
31/12/2021

27.28%

27.28%

26.36%

Tracking
difference
Net of TER
%

(0.88%)

(0.88%)

(1.07%)

TER (Annual
or pro

rata since
inception)
%

0.35%

0.35%

0.35%
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Tracking
difference
Gross of TER
%

(0.53%)

(0.53%)

(0.72%)

Annualised
Tracking
Error

%

0.06%

0.06%

0.10%

Explanation
of the
Tracking
Difference
Investment
related fees
and
difference
of US T-Bill
reference
rate in the
swap and
US T-Bill
portfolio
return.

Investment
related fees
and
difference
of US T-Bill
reference
rate in the
swap and
US T-Bill
portfolio
return.

Investment
related fees
and
difference
of US T-Bill
reference
rate in the
swap and
US T-Bill
portfolio
return.

Anticipated
TE
(Annualised)

up to 2%

up to 2%

up to 2%

Explanation
of
Divergence
(if any)
Within
tolerance

Within
tolerance

Within
tolerance
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Sub-Fund

WisdomTree
Enhanced
Commodity UCITS
ETF - WCOE

WisdomTree
Enhanced
Commodity UCITS
ETF - COMS

WisdomTree
AT1 CoCo Bond
UCITS ETF - CCBO

WisdomTree
AT1 CoCo Bond
UCITS ETF - COCB

Fund return
for the
year ended
31/12/2020

(0.52%)

(0.73%)

9.35%

9.35%

Benchmark TER (Annual

Fund return return Tracking or pro Tracking Annualised
for the for the difference rata since difference Tracking
year ended year ended Net of TER inception)  Gross of TER Error
31/12/2021 31/12/2021 % % % %
24.55% 25.63%  (1.08%) 035%  (0.73%) 0.10%
24.20% 2531%  (1.11%) 035%  (0.76%) 0.13%
2.17% 2.46% (0.28%) 0.44%* 0.16% 0.48%
2.17% 2.46% (0.28%) 0.44%* 0.16% 0.48%
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Explanation

of the Anticipated
Tracking TE
Difference (Annualised)
Investment up to 2%
related fees

and

difference

of US T-Bill

reference

rate in the

swap and

US T-Bill

portfolio

return.

Investment
related fees
and
difference
of US T-Bill
reference
rate in the
swap and
US T-Bill
portfolio
return.

up to 2%

Investment
related fees
and
different
portfolio
composition
in the fund
as
compared
to the
underlying
index due to
relatively
low fund
size,
minimum
trading
volumes for
the CoCo
bonds as
well as
pricing
differences.

up to 2%

Investment
related fees
and
different
portfolio
composition
in the fund
as
compared
to the
underlying
index due to
relatively
low fund
size,
minimum
trading
volumes for
the CoCo
bonds as
well as
pricing
differences.

up to 2%

Explanation
of
Divergence
(if any)
Within
tolerance

Within
tolerance

Within
tolerance

Within
tolerance
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Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Assenagon Asset Management S.A.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Sub-Fund

WisdomTree
AT1 CoCo Bond
UCITS ETF -
CODO

WisdomTree
AT1 CoCo Bond
UCITS ETF - COBO

Fund return
for the
year ended
31/12/2020

6.87%

4.79%

Benchmark

Fund return return
for the for the
year ended year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2021
4.86% 5.25%
3.88% 4.34%

Tracking
difference
Net of TER

Ol)

(0.39%)

(0.45%)

TER (Annual
or pro

rata since
inception)

On

0.44%*

0.44%*

40

Tracking
difference
Gross of TER

,)17

0.05%

(0.01%)

Annualised
Tracking
Error

9 0

0.49%

0.46%

Explanation

of the Anticipated
Tracking TE
Difference (Annualised)
Investment up to 2%
related fees

and

different

portfolio

composition

in the fund

as

compared

to the

underlying

index due to

relatively

low fund

size,

minimum

trading

volumes for

the CoCo

bonds as

well as

pricing

differences.

Currency

Hedge

Impact.

Investment
related fees
and
different
portfolio
composition
in the fund
as
compared
to the
underlying
index due to
relatively
low fund
size,
minimum
trading
volumes for
the CoCo
bonds as
well as
pricing
differences.
Currency
Hedge
Impact.

up to 2%

Explanation
of
Divergence
(if any)
Within
tolerance

Within
tolerance
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Assenagon Asset Management S.A.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Sub-Fund

WisdomTree
AT1 CoCo Bond
UCITS ETF -
COGO

WisdomTree
Enhanced
Commodity
ex-Agriculture
UCITS ETF -
EXAG**

WisdomTree
Enhanced
Commodity
ex-Agriculture
UCITS ETF -
WXAG***

Fund return
for the
year ended
31/12/2020

4.72%

Benchmark

Fund return return
for the for the
year ended year ended
31/12/2021 31/12/2021
4.46% 4.98%
1.35% 2.33%
2.63% 2.82%

Tracking
difference
Net of TER

Ol)

(0.52%)

(0.98%)

(0.19%)

TER (Annual
or pro

rata since
inception)

{)"

0.44%*

0.35%

0.35%

41

Tracking
difference
Gross of TER

,)17

(0.08%)

(0.81%)

(0.11%)

Annualised
Tracking
Error

,)17

0.49%

0.18%

0.14%

Explanation

of the Anticipated
Tracking TE
Difference (Annualised)
Investment up to 2%
related fees

and

different

portfolio

composition

in the fund

as

compared

to the

underlying

index due to

relatively

low fund

size,

minimum

trading

volumes for

the CoCo

bonds as

well as

pricing

differences.

Currency

Hedge

Impact.

Investment
related fees
and
difference
of US T-Bill
reference
rate in the
swap and
US T-Bill
portfolio
return.
Currency
Hedge
Impact.

up to 2%

Investment
related fees
and
difference
of US T-Bill
reference
rate in the
swap and
US T-Bill
portfolio
return.

up to 2%

Explanation
of
Divergence
(if any)
Within
tolerance

Within

tolerance

Within
tolerance
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV
Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Assenagon Asset Management S.A.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Benchmark TER (Annual
Fund return Fund return return Tracking or pro
for the for the for the difference rata since
year ended year ended year ended Net of TER inception)
Sub-Fund 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2021 % %
WisdomTree Broad - 0.42% 0.46% (0.04%) 0.19%
Commodities UCITS
ETF - PCOM***%*
* The TER has been reduced from 0.50% to 0.39% as of 1 July 2021.
wox From 7 July 2021 (date of inception).
ok From 6 October 2021 (date of inception).
Rk From 29 November 2021 (date of inception).
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Tracking
difference
Gross of TER

,)17

(0.02%)

Annualised
Tracking
Error

9 0

0.10%

Explanation
of the
Tracking
Difference
Investment
related fees
and
difference
of US T-Bill
reference
rate in the
swap and
US T-Bill
portfolio
return as
well as
valuation
differences
between the
gold and
silver
futures
market and
the gold and
silver spot
market.

Anticipated
TE
(Annualised)

up to 2%

Explanation
of
Divergence
(if any)
Within
tolerance
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Investment Manager’s Report (continued)
Assenagon Asset Management S.A.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Performance

- During the period from 31 December 2020 until 31 December 2021 the commodity markets exhibited
positive performance with energy (Bloomberg Energy Index), industrial metals (Bloomberg Industrial
Metals Index) and agriculture (Bloomberg Agriculture Index) commodity markets gained 52.06%,
30.28% and 26.61%, respectively. The WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF (Share
Class Ticker Symbols: WCOA / WCOG) has been affected by the above stated market conditions and
net asset value (“NAV”) increased by 26.40% for the period from 31 December 2020 until
31 December 2021.

- During the reporting period the main share class performed in line with the peer-group Funds
returning of 2.17% p.a. The European Banks AT1 CoCo markets showed positive development in
2021. The attractiveness of AT1 CoCo Bonds in bank’s capital structure remained unchanged
providing highest premium yield compared to other comparable sources of bank’s debt financing.

Assenagon Asset Management S.A.
Aerogolf Center

1B, Heienhaff

1736 Senningerberg

Luxembourg

January 2022

43



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1A33F37A-3740-49AE-8BF3-49C9C174E5D8

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Depositary Report
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

We have enquired into the conduct of WisdomTree Issuer ICAV (the “ICAV”) for the financial year ended
31 December 2021, in our capacity as Depositary to the ICAV.

This report including the opinion has been prepared for and solely for the shareholders in the ICAV as a
body, in accordance with Regulation 34, (1), (3) and (4) in Part 5 of the European Communities
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended, (‘the
UCITS Regulations’), and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown.

Responsibilities of the Depositary

Our duties and responsibilities are outlined in Regulation 34, (1), (3) and (4) in Part 5 of the UCITS
Regulations. One of those duties is to enquire into the conduct of the ICAV in each annual accounting
period and report thereon to the shareholders.

Our report shall state whether, in our opinion, the ICAV has been managed in that period in accordance
with the provisions of the Instrument of Incorporation and the UCITS Regulations. It is the overall
responsibility of the ICAV to comply with these provisions. If the ICAV has not so complied, we as
Depositary must state why this is the case and outline the steps which we have taken to rectify the
situation.

Basis of Depositary Opinion

The Depositary conducts such reviews as it, in its reasonable opinion, considers necessary in order to
comply with its duties as outlined in Regulation 34, (1), (3) and (4) in Part 5 of the UCITS Regulations
and to ensure that, in all material respects, the ICAV has been managed:

(1) in accordance with the limitations imposed on its investment and borrowing powers by the
provisions of the ICAV’s Instrument of Incorporation and the UCITS Regulations; and

(i1))  otherwise in accordance with the ICAV’s constitutional documentation and the appropriate
regulations.

Opinion
In our opinion, the ICAV has been managed during the financial year ended 31 December 2021, in all
material respects:

(1) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the ICAV
by the Instrument of Incorporation, the UCITS Regulations and the Central Bank (Supervision and
Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities) Regulations 2015 (‘the Central Bank UCITS Regulations’); and

(i1)  otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the Instrument of Incorporation, the UCITS
Regulations and the Central Bank UCITS Regulations.

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited
78 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay
Dublin 2, Ireland

Date:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE ISSUER ICAV

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of WisdomTree Issuer ICAV (‘the ICAV’) for the financial year ended
31 December 2021, which comprise the financial statements of WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF,
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF, WisdomTree
Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF,
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF, WisdomTree UK Equity Income
UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF, WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF,
WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS
ETF, WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF, WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS
ETF, WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence
UCITS ETF, WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS
ETF, WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS ETF, WisdomTree European
Union Bond UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Emerging
Markets ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG Screened UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Broad Commodity UCITS ETF and
WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS ETF (each individually a “Fund” and collectively the "Funds™).

The financial statement of the Funds comprises of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant
accounting policies set out in note 3. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is Irish Law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Funds as at 31 December
2021 and of their profit/loss for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Irish Collective Asset-
management Vehicles Act 2015, the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment
in Transferable Securities) Requlations, 2011, and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement)
Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2019.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
ICAV in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Ireland,
including the Ethical Standard as applied to public interest entities issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting
Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE ISSUER ICAV
(CONTINUED)

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements of the Funds, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of
the directors' assessment of each Fund's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
included:

Confirming our understanding of management's going concern assessment process and also engaged
with management to understand the key factors which were considered in their assessment;

Obtaining management’s going concern assessment, which covers a year from the date of approval of
the financial statements;

Reviewing and evaluating the reasonability of the key factors considered by management in making
their assessment of going concern including consideration of the availability of liquid assets to meet
ongoing operational costs and known future capital activity in the Funds. In assessing these, we
obtained and reviewed the liquidity terms which the Funds offer to investors together with reviewing
post year-end capital activity and corroborated through enquiry of management as to whether there
are any subsequent events, including fund performance, that might give rise to conditions which could
lead management to discontinue the operations of the Funds.

Reviewing the Funds' going concern disclosures included in the annual report in order to assess that
the disclosures were appropriate and in conformity with the reporting standards.

Conclusion

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on each Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to each Fund's ability to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE ISSUER ICAV

(CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified, including those which had the greatest effect
on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the
Board of Directors

Valuation of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

We have considered valuation of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (with a
combined fair value of £
3,244,884,711 (2020: €
1,366,293,618)) and financial
liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (with a combined fair
value of € 1,122,603) (2020: (£1,
847,369))) as a key audit matter as
it is a key driver of the Funds’
performance and net asset value.

Please refer to Note 3.1 -Financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss, Note 4 - Net gain / (loss) on
investment activities and Note 12 -
Fair Value disclosures in the
financial statements.

Please refer to Note 16. -
Exchange Rates for exchange rates
of non-Euro denominated
currencies as at year-end used in
the calculation of the combined
value above.

We obtained the listing of financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss as at 31 December 2021 from the
Administrator.

We assessed the reasonableness of the
valuation for all financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss by:

obtaining an understanding and
evaluating the key controls that have
been implemented over the valuation
process for financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. This includes obtaining
the service auditor’'s report of the
Administrator and identifying the key
controls in place at the Administrator
over the investment valuation
process;

comparing values to quoted prices or
vendor prices; or

recalculating fair value using industry
standard models, assessing the
reasonableness of the assumptions
and data inputs used by the Directors
to value these financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

No issues have been noted
from the performance of
our procedures over this
key audit matter.
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the
Board of Directors

Existence of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss held outside
of the custody network

We have considered existence of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (with a
combined fair value of EUR
26,281,798 (2020: EUR
5,627,319)) and financial
liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (with a combined fair
value of (EUR1,122,603) (2020:
(EUR 1,847,369))) as a key audit
matter as it is a key driver of the
Funds' performance and net asset
value.

Please refer to Note 3.1 - Financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss, Note 4 - Net gain /
(loss) oninvestment activities and
Note 12 - Fair Value disclosures in
the financial statements.

Please refer to Note 16. -
Exchange Rates for exchange rates
of non-Euro denominated
currencies as at year-end used in
the calculation of the combined
value above.

We obtained the listing of financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss held outside of the custody network as
at 31 December 2021 from the
Administrator

We assessed the reasonableness of the
existence for all financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss held outside of the custody
network by:

obtaining an understanding and
evaluating the key controls that
have been implemented over the
reconciliation process for financial
assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss.
This includes obtaining the service
auditor’s report of the
Administrator and identifying the
key controls in place at the
Administrator over the investment
reconciliation process

obtaining independent
confirmations directly from the
counterparty of each of the
financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss held at year-end and
investigating any material
differences identified to confirm
the existence of these financial
assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss.

No issues have been noted
from the performance of
our procedures over this
key audit matter.
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Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified
misstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a
basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the ICAV to be 0.5% of each Fund’'s Net Asset Value (2020: 0.5%). We believe
that Net Asset Value provides us with appropriate measurement basis since the users of the financial
statements may focus more on this than on earnings.

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality and made no changes to it.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an amount to reduce to
an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements
exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Funds' overall control environment,
our judgement was that performance materiality was 75% (2020: 75%) of our planning materiality. We have
set performance materiality at this percentage due to our knowledge of the Funds and their industry, our past
history with the entity, the effectiveness of its control environment and our assessment of the risks associated
with the engagement.

Reporting threshold

An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Board of Directors that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in
excess of 5% (2020: 5%) of our defined materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our
view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed
above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

An overview of the scope of our audit report
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality
determine our audit scope for the ICAV. This enables us to form an opinion on the financial statements. We
take into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the ICAV and effectiveness of controls, including
controls and changes in the business environment when assessing the level of work to be performed. All audit
work was performed directly by the audit engagement team.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respective responsibilities
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on pages 22 and 23, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework that give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing each Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate each Fund or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate
responses; and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However,
the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with
governance of the entity and management.



EY

Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE ISSUER ICAV
(CONTINUED)

Our approach was as follows:

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the ICAV and
determined that the most significant are the Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicles Act 2015, the
Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities pursuant to the provisions of the European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 and the
Central Bank (Supervision And Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019.

We understood how the Funds are complying with those frameworks by updating our understanding of the
adequate system of internal control in place. We also considered the existence of independence service
providers, proper segregation of duties and the regulated environment in which the Funds operate, which may
reduce opportunities for fraud to take place.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Funds' financial statements to material misstatement, including how
fraud might occur by management override of controls.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and
regulations. Our procedures involved inquiries to those charged with governance into possible instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations, review of board meeting minutes during the year and obtaining
representation from the management.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
IAASA's website at: http://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description _of auditors responsiblities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address

We were appointed by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2013 to audit the financial statements for the year
ending 30 November 2012 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement
including previous renewals and reappointments of the firmis 10 years.

The non-audit services prohibited by IAASA's Ethical Standard were not provided to the ICAV and we remain
independent of the ICAV in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the board of directors.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the ICAV's members, as a body, in accordance with section 120 of the Irish
Collective Asset management Vehicles Act 2015. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the ICAV's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the ICAV and the ICAV's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Gk

Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants

Dublin, 14 April 2022



WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree Emerging
WisdomTree WisdomTree Europe Emerging Markets
US Equity Europe Equity SmallCap Markets SmallCap WisdomTree WisdomTree
Income Income Dividend Equity Income Dividend Japan Equity Europe Equity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note USD EUR EUR USD USD USD USD
Income/(Loss)
Dividend income 2,402,331 1,287,566 1,339,268 3,019,439 1,479,117 1,095,211 1,796,971
Interest income - 2,582 - - - 79,342 -
Net gain on investment activities 4 10,058,532 3,021,570 8,265,164 3,106,802 3,105,324 5,020,300 14,857,544
Total income 12,460,863 4,311,718 9,604,432 6,126,241 4,584,441 6,194,853 16,654,515
Expenses
Management fees 6 (182,124) (68,146) (154,899) (211,014) (183,713) (216,871) (406,244)
Negative yield on financial assets - - - - - - -
Total operating expenses (182,124) (68,146) (154,899) (211,014) (183,713) (216,871) (406,244)
Net investment income for the financial year 12,278,739 4,243,572 9,449,533 5,915,227 4,400,728 5,977,982 16,248,271
Finance costs
Distributions 10 (492,167) (930,789) (747,338) (1,840,365) (971,480) (305,358) (513,799)
Interest expense (79) (507) (1,199) (960) (760) (1,245) (902)
Swaps interest expense - - - - - - -
Total finance costs (492,246) (931,296) (748,537) (1,841,325) (972,240) (306,603) (514,701)
Profit before taxation 11,786,493 3,312,276 8,700,996 4,073,902 3,428,488 5,671,379 15,733,570
Taxation
Withholding tax 7 (373,195) (85,395) (162,787) (391,444) (199,214) (164,282) (128,735)
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations 11,413,298 3,226,881 8,538,209 3,682,458 3,229,274 5,507,097 15,604,835

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Income/(Loss)

Dividend income

Interest income

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities

Total income/(loss)
Expenses

Management fees
Negative yield on financial assets

Total operating expenses

Net investment income/(loss) for the financial year
Finance costs

Distributions

Interest expense
Swaps interest expense

Total finance costs
Profit/(loss) before taxation

Taxation
Withholding tax

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

participating shares resulting from operations

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Note

10

WisdomTree WisdomTree

WisdomTree WisdomTree Eurozone EUR Aggregate

WisdomTree WisdomTree US Quality Global Quality Quality WisdomTree Bond ESG
UK Equity Enhanced Dividend Dividend Dividend ATI Enhanced
Income Commodity Growth Growth Growth UCITS CoCo Bond Yield
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
GBP USD USD USD EUR USD EUR
493,776 - 2,019,578 2,397,466 566,026 - -

- - - - - 10 -
793,586 50,767,396 20,796,123 15,036,915 5,715,048 (1,881,963) (477,378)
1,287,362 50,767,396 22,815,701 17,434,381 6,281,074 (1,881,953) (477,378)
(24,616) (889,759) (317,457) (365,791) (94,921) (695,586) (28,245)
- - - - - - (7,656)
(24,616) (889,759) (317,457) (365,791) (94,921) (695,586) (35,901)
1,262,746 49,877,637 22,498,244 17,068,590 6,186,153 (2,577,539) (513,279)
(418,3606) (22,943) (137,180) (137,659) (190,426) (6,937,794) (49,666)
- (1,962) - (723) (861) (5,026) (216)

- (189,197) - - - - -
(418,3606) (214,102) (137,180) (138,382) (191,287) (6,942,820) (49,882)
844,380 49,663,535 22,361,064 16,930,208 5,994,866 (9,520,359) (563,161)
(11,390) - (304,516) (282,936) (38,504) - -
832,990 49,663,535 22,056,548 16,647,272 5,956,362 (9,520,359) (563,161)
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree
EUR
Government WisdomTree
Bond ESG WisdomTree USD WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
Enhanced Artificial Floating Rate Cloud Battery WisdomTree European
Yield Intelligence Treasury Bond Computing Solutions Cybersecurity Union Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF**
Note EUR USD USD USD USD USD EUR
Income/(Loss)
Dividend income - 2,547,060 - - 6,594,116 219,957 -
Interest income - - - - 114 - -
Net (loss)/gain on investment activities 4 (137,874) 44,755,252 24,992 (10,997,506) 24,824,352 (314,644) (493,155)
Total (loss)/income (137,874) 47,302,312 24,992 (10,997,506) 31,418,582 (94,687) (493,155)
Expenses
Management fees 6 (5,419) (1,807,500) (36,383) (2,650,864) (1,931,026) (130,307) (21,677)
Negative yield on financial assets (927) - - - - - (23,756)
Total operating expenses (6,346) (1,807,500) (36,383) (2,650,864) (1,931,026) (130,307) (45,433)
Net investment (loss)/income for the financial year (144,220) 45,494,812 (11,391) (13,648,370) 29,487,556 (224,994) (538,588)
Finance costs
Distributions 10 (7,739) - - - - - -
Interest expense - (2,100) (45) (463) (10,464) (19) (73)
Swaps interest expense - - - - - - -
Total finance costs (7,739) (2,100) (45) (463) (10,464) (19) (73)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (151,959) 45,492,712 (11,436) (13,648,833) 29,477,092 (225,013) (538,661)
Taxation
Withholding tax 7 - (398,975) - - (906,691) (30,121) -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations (151,959) 45,093,737 (11,436) (13,648,833) 28,570,401 (255,134) (538,661)

*  Launched 25 January 2021.
** Launched 15 February 2021.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree
Emerging
WisdomTree Markets
Enhanced ex-State-Owned WisdomTree WisdomTree
Commodity Enterprises Broad BioRevolution
ex-Agriculture ESG Screened Commodities UCITS
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF*** ETF*%%*
Note USD USD USD USD
Income/(Loss)
Dividend income - 14,153 - 245
Interest income - - - -
Net (loss)/gain on investment activities 4 (1,187,572) (113,094) 10,863 25,009
Total (loss)/income (1,187,572) (98,941) 10,863 25,254
Expenses
Management fees 6 (100,994) (2,334) (150) (270)
Negative yield on financial assets - - - -
Total operating expenses (100,994) (2,334) (150) (270)
Net investment (loss)/income for the financial year (1,288,566) (101,275) 10,713 24,984
Finance costs
Distributions 10 - - - -
Interest expense (785) (10) - -
Swaps interest expense - - - -
Total finance costs (785) (10) - -
(Loss)/profit before taxation (1,289,351) (101,285) 10,713 24,984
Taxation
Withholding tax 7 - (2,275) - 37
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations (1,289,351) (103,560) 10,713 24,947

* Launched 7 July 2021.

**  Launched 18 August 2021.
***  Launched 29 November 2021.
*#%* Launched 3 December 2021.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Income/(Loss)

Dividend income

Interest income

Net loss on investment activities

Total (loss)/income

Expenses

Management fees

Total operating expenses

Net investment (loss)/income for the financial year
Finance costs

Distributions
Interest expense

Total finance costs
Loss before taxation

Taxation
Withholding tax

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

participating shares resulting from operations

* Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree Emerging
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Europe Emerging Markets
US Equity US SmallCap Europe Equity SmallCap Markets SmallCap WisdomTree
Income Dividend Income Dividend Equity Income Dividend ISEQ 20®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
USD USD EUR EUR USD USD EUR
2,503,708 261,002 1,454,421 839,184 2,309,378 1,236,250 136,764
112 22 - - 48 21 -
(6,548,579) (2,287,608) (10,355,264) (4,119,925) (6,092,978) (480,664) (1,443,445)
(4,044,759) (2,026,584) (8,900,843) (3,280,741) (3,783,552) 755,607 (1,306,681)
(156,091) (21,774) (89,699) (130,400) (189,860) (147,393) (48,844)
(156,091) (21,774) (89,699) (130,400) (189,860) (147,393) (48,844)
(4,200,850) (2,048,358) (8,990,542) (3,411,141) (3,973,412) 608,214 (1,355,525)
(986,880) (248,303) (1,127,803) (663,445) (1,707,861) (943,330) (228,540)
(150) - (810) (739) (562) (975) (4,638)
(987,030) (248,303) (1,128,613) (664,184) (1,708,423) (944,305) (233,178)
(5,187,880) (2,296,661) (10,119,155) (4,075,325) (5,681,835) (336,091) (1,588,703)
(382,958) (30,727) (103,011) (66,925) (294,070) (171,074) (138)
(5,570,838) (2,327,388) (10,222,166) (4,142,250) (5,975,905) (507,165) (1,588,841)

Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations with the exception of the Sub-Funds which terminated during the financial year. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree US Quality
Germany WisdomTree WisdomTree UK Equity Emerging Asia Enhanced Dividend
Equity Japan Equity Europe Equity Income Equity Income Commodity Growth
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note GBP USD USD GBP USD USD USD
Income/(Loss)
Dividend income 195,257 1,395,495 2,672,410 394,290 411,548 - 1,338,007
Interest income - 126 44 - 17 2,672 43
Net (loss)/gain on investment activities 4 (392,490) (16,489,619) (9,523,653) (2,788,307) (1,513,232) (32,563,262) 8,807,127
Total (loss)/income (197,233) (15,093,998) (6,851,199) (2,394,017) (1,101,667) (32,560,590) 10,145,177
Expenses
Management fees 6 (14,479) (362,002) (559,605) (24,259) (33,634) (573,973) (180,541)
Total operating expenses (14,479) (362,002) (559,605) (24,259) (33,634) (573,973) (180,541)
Net investment (loss)/income for the financial year (211,712) (15,456,000) (7,410,804) (2,418,276) (1,135,301) (33,134,563) 9,964,636
Finance costs
Distributions 10 (125,302) (2,208,105) (464,759) (441,168) (424,852) (83,738) (117,477)
Interest expense (965) (1,062) (1,161) (30) (60) (17,915) (53)
Total finance costs (126,267) (2,209,167) (465,920) (441,198) (424,912) (101,653) (117,530)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (337,979) (17,665,167) (7,876,724) (2,859,474) (1,560,213) (33,236,216) 9,847,106
Taxation
Withholding tax 7 (29,158) (209,324) (238,300) (964) (57,043) - (200,814)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations (367,137) (17,874,491) (8,115,024) (2,860,438) (1,617,256) (33,236,216) 9,646,292

* Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations with the exception of the Sub-Funds which terminated during the financial year. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree EUR
WisdomTree Eurozone EUR Aggregate Government
Global Quality Quality WisdomTree WisdomTree Bond ESG Bond ESG
Dividend Dividend WisdomTree AT1 CBOE S&P 500 Enhanced Enhanced
Growth Growth UCITS India Quality CoCo Bond PutWrite Yield Yield
UCITS ETF ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note USD EUR USD USD USD EUR EUR
Income/(Loss)
Dividend income 1,160,025 438,524 84,496 - - - -
Interest income 396 - - 235 7 - -
Net gain/(loss) on investment activities 4 4,771,634 1,385,294 530,138 14,404,074 (43,410) 309,644 211,629
Total income/(loss) 5,932,055 1,823,818 614,634 14,404,309 (43,403) 309,644 211,629
Expenses
Management fees 6 (195,673) (65,891) (27,398) (381,840) (1,771) (11,860) (5,433)
Total operating expenses (195,673) (65,891) (27,398) (381,840) (1,771) (11,860) (5,433)
Net investment income/(loss) for the financial year 5,736,382 1,757,927 587,236 14,022,469 (45,174) 297,784 206,196
Finance costs
Distributions 10 (53,068) (84,988) (20,003) (3,901,257) - (28,826) (10,670)
Interest expense (40) (262) (501) (2,842) - (180) -
Total finance costs (53,108) (85,250) (20,504) (3,904,099) - (29,006) (10,670)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 5,683,274 1,672,677 566,732 10,118,370 (45,174) 268,778 195,526
Taxation
Withholding tax 7 (140,636) (30,754) (11,351) (2,814) - - -
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations 5,542,638 1,641,923 555,381 10,115,556 (45,174) 268,778 195,526

*  Terminated 8 September 2020.
** Terminated 11 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations with the exception of the Sub-Funds which terminated during the financial year. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree USD WisdomTree WisdomTree
Japan SmallCap WisdomTree Artificial Floating Rate Cloud Battery
Dividend US Multifactor Intelligence Treasury Bond Computing Solutions
UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
Note USD USD USD USD USD USD
Income/(Loss)
Dividend income 30,860 28,202 982,274 - - 219,735
Interest income 1 3 215 29 52 27
Net (loss)/gain on investment activities 4 (202,992) (31,935) 85,900,034 71,729 127,785,167 30,445,173
Total (loss)/income (172,131) (3,730) 86,882,523 71,758 127,785,219 30,664,935
Expenses
Management fees 6 (5,812) (4,257) (460,888) (23,400) (677,193) (83,636)
Total operating expenses (5,812) (4,257) (460,888) (23,400) (677,193) (83,636)
Net investment (loss)/income for the financial year (177,943) (7,987) 86,421,635 48,358 127,108,026 30,581,299
Finance costs
Distributions 10 (18,098) (5,861) - (9,489) - -
Interest expense - - (1,043) (45) (17) (1,893)
Total finance costs (18,098) (5,861) (1,043) (9,534) (17) (1,893)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (196,041) (13,848) 86,420,592 38,824 127,108,009 30,579,406
Taxation
Withholding tax 7 (4,714) (4,304) (163,273) - - (35,020)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations (200,755) (18,152) 86,257,319 38,824 127,108,009 30,544,386

*  Launched 26 February 2020.
** Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Gains and losses are solely from continuing operations with the exception of the Sub-Funds which terminated during the financial year. There were no recognised gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2021

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree Emerging
WisdomTree WisdomTree Europe Emerging Markets
US Equity Europe Equity SmallCap Markets SmallCap WisdomTree WisdomTree
Income Income Dividend Equity Income Dividend Japan Equity Europe Equity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note USD EUR EUR USD UsD USD USD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12
— Transferable securities 70,674,889 23,392,007 48,247,420 52,898,528 37,855,843 43,754,775 80,985,010
— Exchange-traded commodities - - - - - - -
— Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts 125,805 - - - - 806,924 60,828
— Unrealised gain on total return swaps - - - - - - -
Debtors
— Receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares - - - - - - -
— Receivable for investments sold 6,423 - - - 1,121 - 232,430
— Interest receivable - - - - - - -
— Dividends receivable 63,869 163,805 324,711 192,489 130,364 66,127 247,987
— Other receivables 65 - - - - 1,825 3,025
Cash and cash equivalents 154,118 110,576 95,295 192,203 234,925 37,664 32,723
Total Assets 71,025,169 23,666,388 48,667,426 53,283,220 38,222,253 44,667,315 81,562,003
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 12
— Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts - - - - - (18,782) (489,877)
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
— Payable to holders of redeemable participating shares - - - - - - -
— Payable for investments purchased - - - - (3,923) (563,799) (60,161)
— Capital gains tax payable - - - - - - -
— Management fees payable 6 (17,030) (5,673) (15,400) (19,862) (17,075) (17,825) (31,083)
— Payable to Management Company - - - - - - -
Bank overdraft - - - - - - (20,687)
Total Liabilities (17,030) (5,673) (15,400) (19,862) (20,998) (600,406) (601,808)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 71,008,139 23,660,715 48,652,026 53,263,358 38,201,255 44,066,909 80,960,195

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Financial Position (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— Transferable securities
— Exchange-traded commodities

— Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
— Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Debtors

— Receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares

— Receivable for investments sold
— Interest receivable

— Dividends receivable

— Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

— Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

— Payable to holders of redeemable participating shares

— Payable for investments purchased

— Capital gains tax payable
— Management fees payable

— Payable to Management Company

Bank overdraft

Total Liabilities

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

12

12

WisdomTree WisdomTree

WisdomTree WisdomTree Eurozone EUR Aggregate

WisdomTree WisdomTree US Quality Global Quality Quality WisdomTree Bond ESG
UK Equity Enhanced Dividend Dividend Dividend ATI Enhanced
Income Commodity Growth Growth Growth UCITS CoCo Bond Yield
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
GBP USD USD USD EUR USD EUR
9,644,698 659,337,910 183,773,614 161,852,682 57,590,082 228,424,681 11,963,502
- 1,198,714 - - - 1,717,773 -

- 25,820,393 - - - - -

- 381,396,057 401,440 - - - -

- - - - - 3,164,900 67,873

26,624 - 119,896 89,341 68,183 - -
29,212 10,417,986 748,476 4,645,227 62,528 1,454,291 49,314
9,700,534 1,078,171,060 185,043,426 166,587,250 57,720,793 234,761,645 12,080,689
- (21,535) - - - (133,114) -

- (3,288,368) - - - - -

- (393,812,912) (286,205) (4,175,655) - (1,190,448) -
(2,343) (116,800) (45,994) (48,375) (13,366) (74,099) (2,674)

- - (110,439) - - - -
(2,343) (397,239,615) (442,638) (4,224,030) (13,366) (1,397,661) (2,674)
9,698,191 680,931,445 184,600,788 162,363,220 57,707,427 233,363,984 12,078,015
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— Transferable securities

— Exchange-traded commodities

— Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
— Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Debtors

— Receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares
— Receivable for investments sold

— Interest receivable

— Dividends receivable

— Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
— Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
— Unrealised loss on total return swaps

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

— Payable to holders of redeemable participating shares
— Payable for investments purchased

— Capital gains tax payable

— Management fees payable

— Payable to Management Company

Bank overdraft

Total Liabilities
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

*  Launched 25 January 2021.
** Launched 15 February 2021.
The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

WisdomTree
EUR
Government WisdomTree
Bond ESG WisdomTree USD WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
Enhanced Artificial Floating Rate Cloud Battery WisdomTree European
Yield Intelligence Treasury Bond Computing Solutions Cybersecurity Union Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF**
Note EUR UsD Usb Usb UsD UsD EUR
12
3,278,411 519,256,168 35,082,308 593,520,981 645,427,702 74,357,481 15,023,890
- - 1,330,414 - - - -
28,412 - 7,802 - - - 9,774
- 166,342 - - 613,330 - -
- - - - 1,797 - -
12,564 48,327 55,327 295,575 88,866,665 82,123 11,492
3,319,387 519,470,837 36,475,851 593,816,556 734,909,494 74,439,604 15,045,156
12
- - (1,330,343) - - - -
6 (458) (170,993) (4,372) (203,484) (220,987) (27,120) (2,082)
- - - - (88,081,767) - -
(458) (170,993) (1,334,715) (203,484) (88,302,754) (27,120) (2,082)
3,318,929 519,299,844 35,141,136 593,613,072 646,606,740 74,412,484 15,043,074
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— Transferable securities

— Exchange-traded commodities

— Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
— Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Debtors

— Receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares
— Receivable for investments sold

— Interest receivable

— Dividends receivable

— Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

— Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
— Unrealised loss on total return swaps

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

— Payable to holders of redeemable participating shares

— Payable for investments purchased

— Capital gains tax payable

— Management fees payable

— Payable to Management Company

Bank overdraft

Total Liabilities

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

* Launched 7 July 2021.

**  Launched 18 August 2021.

**%  Launched 29 November 2021.

##*% Launched 3 December 2021.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an inteoral nart nf theee financial statements.

DocuSigned by: DocusSigned by:

0D4E3CDCE5BE482... 483CBOAOOF44444...
Date: 5 April 2022

Note
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WisdomTree
WisdomTree Emerging Markets
Enhanced ex-State-Owned WisdomTree WisdomTree
Commodity Enterprises Broad BioRevolution
ex-Agriculture ESG Screened Commodities UCITS
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF*** ETF****
USD UsD USD USD
73,689,201 2,896,761 1,028,878 756,526
- - 179,920 -
119,565 - - -
- - 37,659 -
- 56 205,451 -
- 5,357 - 117
6,394,268 233,706 11,114 759
80,203,034 3,135,880 1,463,022 757,402
(81,393) - - -
(531,924) - - -
- - (207,589) -
(22,253) (784) (140) (270)
(647,304) (224,573) - -
(1,282,874) (225,357) (207,729) (270)
78,920,160 2,910,523 1,255,293 757,132




WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— Transferable securities

— Exchange-traded commodities

— Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
— Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Debtors

— Receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares
— Receivable for investments sold

— Interest receivable

— Dividends receivable

— Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

— Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

— Payable to holders of redeemable participating shares

— Payable for investments purchased

— Capital gains tax payable

— Management fees payable

— Payable to Management Company

Bank overdraft

Total Liabilities

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

* Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

WisdomTree

WisdomTree WisdomTree Emerging

WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Europe Emerging Markets
US Equity US SmallCap Europe Equity SmallCap Markets SmallCap WisdomTree
Income Dividend Income Dividend Equity Income Dividend ISEQ 20®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
Note USD USD EUR EUR UsD USD EUR

12
50,870,695 - 22,506,737 31,013,280 41,276,376 29,272,238 -
175,574 - - - - - -
- - 382,473 215,921 911,904 295,966 -
55,410 - 214,415 311,339 147,873 126,431 -
64 - - - - - -
32,504 - 33,083 25911 297,161 238,031 -
51,134,247 - 23,136,708 31,566,451 42,633,314 29,932,666 -
12

(40) - - - (21,284) (40,882) -
- - - - (2,398) (22,197) -
6 (13,712) - (6,096) (10,398) (16,399) (12,620) -
- - (8,529) (8,423) (54) - -
(13,752) - (14,625) (18,821) (40,135) (75,699) -
51,120,495 - 23,122,083 31,547,630 42,593,179 29,856,967 -
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— Transferable securities

— Exchange-traded commodities

— Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
— Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Debtors

— Receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares
— Receivable for investments sold

— Interest receivable

— Dividends receivable

— Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
— Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

— Payable to holders of redeemable participating shares
— Payable for investments purchased

— Capital gains tax payable

— Management fees payable

— Payable to Management Company

Bank overdraft

Total Liabilities
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

* Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree US Quality
Germany WisdomTree WisdomTree UK Equity Emerging Asia Enhanced Dividend
Equity Japan Equity Europe Equity Income Equity Income Commodity Growth
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note GBP USD USD GBP USD USD USD
12
- 37,653,132 90,412,450 7,385,666 - 126,611,733 69,951,618
- 95,540 31,692 - - 703,704 -
- - - - - 5,627,319 -
- 181,250 2,093,987 172,305 - 20,109,183 -
- 40 - R - - -
75,999 62,523 374,813 29,425 - - 62,996
- 1,824 3,025 - - - -
- 301,662 200,335 15,258 - 1,569,550 89,151
75,999 38,295,971 93,116,302 7,602,654 - 154,621,489 70,103,765
12
- (303,533) (1,924,287) - - (3,478) -
- (249,537) - - - - -
- - - - - (20,328,772) -
6 - (16,267) (44,692) (1,821) - (36,751) (19,084)
(75,999) - - - - - -
- - (348) - - - -
(75,999) (569,337) (1,969,327) (1,821) - (20,369,001) (19,084)
- 37,726,634 91,146,975 7,600,833 - 134,252,488 70,084,681
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— Transferable securities

— Exchange-traded commodities

— Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
— Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Debtors

— Receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares
— Receivable for investments sold

— Interest receivable

— Dividends receivable

— Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
— Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

— Payable to holders of redeemable participating shares
— Payable for investments purchased

— Capital gains tax payable

— Management fees payable

— Payable to Management Company

Bank overdraft

Total Liabilities

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

*  Terminated 8 September 2020.

** Terminated 11 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

WisdomTree

WisdomTree EUR

WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Government
Global Quality WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Bond ESG Bond ESG
Dividend Eurozone Quality WisdomTree ATI CBOE S&P 500 Enhanced Enhanced
Growth Dividend Growth India Quality CoCo Bond PutWrite Yield Yield
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
UsD EUR UsD Usb USD EUR EUR
57,373,118 24,507,220 - 98,533,758 - 15,007,824 3,436,357
- - - 474,244 - - -

- - - - - 22,779 -

- - - 1,465,235 - 84,680 31,709

65,750 51,009 - - - - -
127,911 368,393 - 1,230,395 - 9,477 3,329
57,566,779 24,926,622 - 101,703,632 - 15,124,760 3,471,395
- - - (28,958) - - -

- (281,801) - - - - -

- - - (1,567,572) - - -
(17,595) (6,323) - (40,979) - (1,958) (470)
(17,595) (288,124) - (1,637,509) - (1,958) (470)
57,549,184 24,638,498 - 100,066,123 - 15,122,802 3,470,925
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree USD WisdomTree WisdomTree
Japan SmallCap WisdomTree Artificial Floating Rate Cloud Battery
Dividend US Multifactor Intelligence Treasury Bond Computing Solutions
UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
Note USD USD USD USD USD USD
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12
— Transferable securities - - 268,997,341 19,311,606 481,876,631 193,339,710
— Exchange-traded commodities - - - - - -
— Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts - - - - - -
— Unrealised gain on total return swaps - - - - - -
Debtors
— Receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares - - 1,188,535 - - 5,210,837
— Receivable for investments sold - - - 862,748 - -
— Interest receivable - - - 8,306 - -
— Dividends receivable - - 75,708 - - 99,531
— Other receivables - - - - - 1,798
Cash and cash equivalents - - 204,639 24,473 14,710,254 23,099,256
Total Assets - - 270,466,223 20,207,133 496,586,885 221,751,132
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 12
— Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts - - - - - -
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
— Payable to holders of redeemable participating shares - - - - (4,019,752) -
— Payable for investments purchased - - (1,189,742) (857,921) (10,537,787) (4,713,702)
— Capital gains tax payable - - - - - -
— Management fees payable 6 - - (83,764) (2,427) (155,233) (43,951)
— Payable to Management Company - - - - - -
Bank overdraft - - (43,449) - - (23,038,260)
Total Liabilities - - (1,316,955) (860,348) (14,712,772) (27,795,913)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares - - 269,149,268 19,346,785 481,874,113 193,955,219

*  Launched 26 February 2020.
** Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accomnanvinoe nate are an inteoral part of these financial statements.

DocusSigned by: DocusSigned by:
OD4E3CDCES5BE482... 483CB9A00F44444. ..

Date: 5 April 2022
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree
WisdomTree Emerging
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Emerging Markets
US Equity Europe Equity Europe SmallCap Markets SmallCap WisdomTree WisdomTree
Income Income Dividend Equity Income Dividend Japan Equity Europe Equity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note USD EUR EUR USD USD USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the year 51,120,495 23,122,083 31,547,630 42,593,179 29,856,967 37,726,634 91,146,975
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 5 32,404,803 1,289,525 12,898,837 11,637,416 5,115,014 73,184,592 34,930,651
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed 5 (23,930,457) (3,977,774) (4,332,650) (4,649,695) - (72,351,414) (60,722,266)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 8,474,346 (2,688,249) 8,566,187 6,987,721 5,115,014 833,178 (25,791,615)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares resulting from operations 11,413,298 3,226,881 8,538,209 3,682,458 3,229,274 5,507,097 15,604,835
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 71,008,139 23,660,715 48,652,026 53,263,358 38,201,255 44,066,909 80,960,195

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree
EUR Aggregate
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Bond ESG
UK Equity Enhanced US Quality Global Quality Eurozone Quality ATI Enhanced
Income Commodity Dividend Growth Dividend Growth Dividend Growth CoCo Bond Yield
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note GBP USD USD USD EUR USD EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the year 7,600,833 134,252,488 70,084,681 57,549,184 24,638,498 100,066,123 15,122,802
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 5 1,264,368 640,383,818 105,894,113 95,526,979 33,101,981 156,929,047 8,388,368
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed 5 - (143,368,396) (13,434,554) (7,360,215) (5,989,414) (14,110,827) (10,869,994)
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 1,264,368 497,015,422 92,459,559 88,166,764 27,112,567 142,818,220 (2,481,626)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares resulting from operations 832,990 49,663,535 22,056,548 16,647,272 5,956,362 (9,520,359) (563,161)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 9,698,191 680,931,445 184,600,788 162,363,220 57,707,427 233,363,984 12,078,015

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

70

805371 06067-€498-3V61-07LE-V.E4EEV | (Al @dojaauz ubignooq



WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree
EUR Government WisdomTree
Bond ESG WisdomTree USD WisdomTree WisdomTree
Enhanced Artificial Floating Rate WisdomTree Battery WisdomTree European
Yield Intelligence Treasury Bond Cloud Computing Solutions Cybersecurity Union Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF**
Note EUR USD USD USD USD USD EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the year 3,470,925 269,149,268 19,346,785 481,874,113 193,955,219 - -
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 5 404,333 283,109,888 16,538,724 408,985,745 431,838,133 74,667,618 16,348,522
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed 5 (404,370) (78,053,049) (732,937) (283,597,953) (7,757,013) - (766,787)
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions 37 205,056,839 15,805,787 125,387,792 424,081,120 74,667,618 15,581,735
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares resulting from operations (151,959) 45,093,737 (11,436) (13,648,833) 28,570,401 (255,134) (538,661)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 3,318,929 519,299,844 35,141,136 593,613,072 646,606,740 74,412,484 15,043,074

*  Launched 25 January 2021.
** Launched 15 February 2021.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree
Emerging
WisdomTree Markets
Enhanced ex-State-Owned WisdomTree
Commodity Enterprises Broad WisdomTree
ex-Agriculture ESG Screened Commodities BioRevolution
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF*** UCITS ETF*%%*
Note USD USD USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the year - - - -
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 5 80,467,126 3,014,083 1,244,580 732,185
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed 5 (257,615) - - -
Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions 80,209,511 3,014,083 1,244,580 732,185
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares resulting from operations (1,289,351) (103,560) 10,713 24,947
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 78,920,160 2,910,523 1,255,293 757,132

* Launched 7 July 2021.

**  Launched 18 August 2021.
*#%  Launched 29 November 2021.
**** Launched 3 December 2021.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Note
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the year
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 5
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed 5

Net increase/(decrease) from share transactions

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares resulting from operations

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year

* Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

WisdomTree

WisdomTree Emerging

WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Emerging Markets
US Equity US SmallCap Europe Equity Europe SmallCap Markets SmallCap WisdomTree
Income Dividend Income Dividend Equity Income Dividend ISEQ 20®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
UsD Usb EUR EUR UsD Usb EUR
62,103,276 11,236,086 43,334,941 46,581,551 50,595,801 36,037,247 19,026,762
37,870,052 1,818,792 4,590,190 17,957,721 6,557,522 3,864,386 -
(43,281,995) (10,727,490) (14,580,882) (28,849,392) (8,584,239) (9,537,501) (17,437,921)
(5,411,943) (8,908,698) (9,990,692) (10,891,671) (2,026,717) (5,673,115) (17,437,921)
(5,570,838) (2,327,388) (10,222,166) (4,142,250) (5,975,905) (507,165) (1,588,841)
51,120,495 - 23,122,083 31,547,630 42,593,179 29,856,967 -
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
Germany WisdomTree WisdomTree UK Equity Emerging Asia Enhanced US Quality
Equity Japan Equity Europe Equity Income Equity Income Commodity Dividend Growth
UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note GBP USD USD GBP USD USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the year 6,670,203 261,763,575 128,791,365 9,465,765 12,841,095 321,174,789 40,185,310
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 5 1,725,976 23,426,281 12,865,639 2,668,105 2,065,820 124,524,260 50,277,448
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed 5 (8,029,042) (229,588,731) (42,395,005) (1,672,599) (13,289,659) (278,210,345) (30,024,369)
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions (6,303,066) (206,162,450) (29,529,366) 995,506 (11,223,839) (153,686,085) 20,253,079
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares resulting from operations (367,137) (17,874,491) (8,115,024) (2,860,438) (1,617,256) (33,236,216) 9,646,292
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year - 37,726,634 91,146,975 7,600,833 - 134,252,488 70,084,681

* Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

WisdomTree WisdomTree
EUR Aggregate EUR Government
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Bond ESG Bond ESG
Global Quality Eurozone Quality WisdomTree ATI1 CBOE S&P 500 Enhanced Enhanced
Dividend Growth Dividend Growth India Quality CoCo Bond PutWrite Yield Yield
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note USD EUR USD USD USD EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the year 66,222,691 23,309,595 4,892,088 58,844,388 784,019 5,657,213 3,275,399
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 5 58,342,327 10,862,860 1,862,957 65,877,226 228,904 11,052,434 -
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed 5 (72,558,472) (11,175,880) (7,310,426) (34,771,047) (967,749) (1,855,623) -
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions (14,216,145) (313,020) (5,447,469) 31,106,179 (738,845) 9,196,811 -
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares resulting from operations 5,542,638 1,641,923 555,381 10,115,556 (45,174) 268,778 195,526
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 57,549,184 24,638,498 - 100,066,123 - 15,122,802 3,470,925

* Terminated 8 September 2020.
** Terminated 11 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree USD WisdomTree
Japan SmallCap WisdomTree Artificial Floating Rate WisdomTree Battery
Dividend US Multifactor Intelligence Treasury Bond Cloud Computing Solutions
UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
Note USD USD USD USD USD USD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the year 2,021,394 2,193,901 38,222,671 8,481,876 7,699,099 -
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 5 - - 184,628,826 19,942,310 443,740,930 163,410,833
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed 5 (1,820,639) (2,175,749) (39,959,548) (9,116,225) (96,673,925) -
Net (decrease)/increase from share transactions (1,820,639) (2,175,749) 144,669,278 10,826,085 347,067,005 163,410,833
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares resulting from operations (200,755) (18,152) 86,257,319 38,824 127,108,009 30,544,386
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year - - 269,149,268 19,346,785 481,874,113 193,955,219

*  Launched 26 February 2020.
** Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Cash Flows

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Operating activities

Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Adjustments for:

Net (increase)/decrease in transferable securities

Net decrease/(increase) in exchange-traded commodities
Unrealised gain/(loss) on open forward foreign currency exchange
contracts

Unrealised gain on total return swaps

(Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities
Financing activities

Amounts received on issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of cash movement during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Bank overdraft at beginning of the year

Bank overdraft at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplementary information on cash flow from operating
activities:

Interest received

Dividend received

Taxation paid

Interest paid

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

WisdomTree
WisdomTree Emerging
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Emerging Markets
US Equity Europe Equity Europe SmallCap Markets SmallCap WisdomTree WisdomTree
Income Income Dividend Equity Income Dividend Japan Equity Europe Equity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
Note UsD EUR EUR UsD UsD UsD UsD
11,413,298 3,226,881 8,538,209 3,682,458 3,229,274 5,507,097 15,604,835
(19,804,194) (885,270) (17,234,140) (11,622,152) (8,583,605) (6,101,643) 9,427,440
49,769 y . - . (996,135) (1,463,546)
(14,883) 433,083 202,549 867,288 290,912 177,685 1,988,383
3,278 (423) 5,002 (20,219) (54,701) 315,820 46,552
(8,352,732) 2,774,271 (8,488,380) (7,092,625) (5,118,120) (1,097,176) 25,603,664
5 32,404,803 1,289,525 12,898,837 11,637,416 5,115,014 73,184,592 34,930,651
5 (23,930,457) (3,977,774) (4,332,650) (4,649,695) - (72,351,414) (60,722,266)
8,474,346 (2,688,249) 8,566,187 6,987,721 5,115,014 833,178 (25,791,615)
121,614 86,022 77,807 (104,904) (3,106) (263,998) (187,951)
32,504 33,083 25,911 297,161 238,031 301,662 200,335
- (8,529) (8,423) (54) - - (348)
32,504 24,554 17,488 297,107 238,031 301,662 199,987
- - - - - - (20,687)
154,118 110,576 95,295 192,203 234,925 37,664 32,723
154,118 110,576 95,295 192,203 234,925 37,664 12,036
- 2,582 - - - 79,382 -
2,393,872 1,338,176 1,325,896 2,974,823 1,475,184 1,091,607 1,923,797
(373,195) (85,395) (162,787) (393,842) (221,411) (164,282) (128,735)
(79) (507) (1,199) (960) (760) (1,245) (902)
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Operating activities

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Adjustments for:

Net (increase)/decrease in transferable securities

Net decrease/(increase) in exchange-traded commodities

Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Unrealised loss on total return swaps

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities
Financing activities

Amounts received on issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of cash movement during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Bank overdraft at beginning of the year

Bank overdraft at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplementary information on cash flow from operating
activities:

Interest received

Dividend received

Taxation paid

Interest paid

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

WisdomTree

EUR Aggregate

WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Bond ESG

UK Equity Enhanced US Quality Global Quality Eurozone Quality ATI Enhanced

Income Commodity Dividend Growth Dividend Growth Dividend Growth CoCo Bond Yield

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

Note GBP USD USD USD EUR USD EUR
832,990 49,663,535 22,056,548 16,647,272 5,956,362 (9,520,359) (563,161)

(2,259,032) (532,726,177) (113,821,996) (104,479,564) (33,082,862) (129,890,923) 3,044,322

- (476,953) - - - (1,139,373) -

- (20,193,074) - - - - -

175,106 (361,286,874) (458,340) (23,591) (17,174) (1,699,665) 39,586

522 376,852,557 313,115 4,206,435 (274,758) (344,004) 716

(1,250,414) (488,166,986) (91,910,673) (83,649,448) (27,418,432) (142,594,324) 2,521,463

5 1,264,368 640,383,818 105,894,113 95,526,979 33,101,981 156,929,047 8,388,368
5 - (143,368,396) (13,434,554) (7,360,215) (5,989,414) (14,110,827) (10,869,994)
1,264,368 497,015,422 92,459,559 88,166,764 27,112,567 142,818,220 (2,481,626)

13,954 8,848,436 548,886 4,517,316 (305,865) 223,896 39,837

15,258 1,569,550 89,151 127,911 368,393 1,230,395 9,477

15,258 1,569,550 89,151 127,911 368,393 1,230,395 9,477

- - (110,439) - - - -

29,212 10,417,986 748,476 4,645,227 62,528 1,454,291 49,314

29,212 10,417,986 638,037 4,645,227 62,528 1,454,291 49,314

- 114,472 - - - 7,377,476 102,322

496,577 - 1,962,678 2,373,875 548,852 - -

(11,390) - (304,516) (282,936) (38,504) - -

- (1,962) - (723) (861) (5,026) (216)
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Operating activities

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Adjustments for:

Net decrease/(increase) in transferable securities

Net decrease/(increase) in exchange-traded commodities

Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Financing activities

Amounts received on issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed

Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of cash movement during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Bank overdraft at beginning of the year

Bank overdraft at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplementary information on cash flow from operating
activities:

Interest received

Dividend received

Taxation paid

Interest paid

*  Launched 25 January 2021.
** Launched 15 February 2021.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

WisdomTree
EUR Government WisdomTree

Bond ESG WisdomTree USD WisdomTree WisdomTree

Enhanced Artificial Floating Rate WisdomTree Battery WisdomTree European

Yield Intelligence Treasury Bond Cloud Computing Solutions Cybersecurity Union Bond

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF**

Note EUR UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD EUR
(151,959) 45,093,737 (11,436) (13,648,833) 28,570,401 (255,134) (538,661)
157,946 (250,258,827) (15,770,702) (111,644,350) (452,087,992) (74,357,481) (15,023,890)
3,297 1,097,901 (467,162) - 4,697,039 - (9,774)

(12) (1,102,513) 474,367 (14,509,288) (4,536,666) 27,120 2,082
9,272 (205,169,702) (15,774,933) (139,802,471) (423,357,218) (74,585,495) (15,570,243)

5 404,333 283,109,888 16,538,724 408,985,745 431,838,133 74,667,618 16,348,522
5 (404,370) (78,053,049) (732,937) (283,597,953) (7,757,013) - (766,787)
(37) 205,056,839 15,805,787 125,387,792 424,081,120 74,667,618 15,581,735

9,235 (112,863) 30,854 (14,414,679) 723,902 82,123 11,492

3,329 204,639 24,473 14,710,254 23,099,256 - -

- (43,449) - - (23,038,260) - -

3,329 161,190 24,473 14,710,254 60,996 - -

- - - - (88,081,767) - -

12,564 48,327 55,327 295,575 88,866,665 82,123 11,492

12,564 48,327 55,327 295,575 784,898 82,123 11,492

36,425 - 26,532 - 114 - 8,924

- 2,456,426 - - 6,080,317 219,957 -

- (398,975) - - (906,691) (30,121) -

- (2,100) (45) (463) (10,465) (19) (73)
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

Operating activities

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Adjustments for:

Net increase in transferable securities

Net decrease/(increase) in exchange-traded commodities

Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Unrealised gain/(loss) on total return swaps

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash used in operating activities

Financing activities

Amounts received on issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed

Net cash flows provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of cash movement during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Bank overdraft at beginning of the year

Bank overdraft at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplementary information on cash flow from operating activities:

Interest received
Dividend received
Taxation paid
Interest paid

* Launched 7 July 2021.

**  Launched 18 August 2021.
***  Launched 29 November 2021.
*#%* Launched 3 December 2021.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

WisdomTree
WisdomTree Emerging Markets
Enhanced ex-State-Owned WisdomTree

Commodity Enterprises Broad WisdomTree
ex-Agriculture ESG Screened Commodities BioRevolution

UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF*** UCITS ETF****

Note Usb UsD UsD UsD
(1,289,351) (103,560) 10,713 24,947
(73,689,201) (2,896,761) (1,028,878) (756,526)

- - (179,920) -

(38,172) - - -

531,924 - (37,659) -
- (5,413) (205,451) (117)

22,253 784 207,729 270
(74,462,547) (3,004,950) (1,233,466) (731,426)

5 80,467,126 3,014,083 1,244,580 732,185
5 (257,615) - - -
80,209,511 3,014,083 1,244,580 732,185

5,746,964 9,133 11,114 759

(647,304) (224,573) - -

6,394,268 233,706 11,114 759

5,746,964 9,133 11,114 759

12,250 - 46 -

- 8,796 - 128
- (2,275) - (37)

(785) (10) - -
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Operating activities

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Adjustments for:

Net decrease in transferable securities

Net decrease/(increase) in exchange-traded commodities

Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities

Financing activities

Amounts received on issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of cash movement during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Bank overdraft at beginning of the year

Bank overdraft at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplementary information on cash flow from operating
activities:

Interest received

Dividend received

Taxation paid

Interest paid

* Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

WisdomTree
WisdomTree Emerging
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Emerging Markets
US Equity US SmallCap Europe Equity Europe SmallCap Markets SmallCap WisdomTree
Income Dividend Income Dividend Equity Income Dividend ISEQ 20®
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
Note UsD UsD EUR EUR Usb UsD EUR
(5,570,838) (2,327,388) (10,222,166) (4,142,250) (5,975,905) (507,165) (1,588,841)
10,867,235 11,182,893 20,364,949 15,166,112 8,983,513 6,657,548 19,023,730
(102,323) - - - - - -
54,440 21,241 (299,274) (172,281) (866,171) (274,400) 359
(2,382) (4,112) (4,925) (5,230) (27,079) (114,444) (8,807)
5,246,132 8,872,634 9,838,584 10,846,351 2,114,358 5,761,539 17,426,441
5 37,870,052 1,818,792 4,590,190 17,957,721 6,557,522 3,864,386 -
5 (43,281,995) (10,727,490) (14,580,882) (28,849,392) (8,584,239) (9,537,501) (17,437,921)
(5,411,943) (8,908,698) (9,990,692) (10,891,671) (2,026,717) (5,673,115) (17,437,921)
(165,811) (36,064) (152,108) (45,320) 87,641 88,424 (11,480)
198,315 36,064 176,662 62,808 209,466 149,607 11,480
198,315 36,064 176,662 62,808 209,466 149,607 11,480
- - (8,529) (8,423) (54) - -
32,504 - 33,083 25911 297,161 238,031 -
32,504 - 24,554 17,488 297,107 238,031 -
112 22 - - 48 21 -
2,558,148 282,243 1,502,543 882,824 2,351,159 1,223,569 137,123
(382,958) (30,727) (103,011) (66,925) (338,762) (253,336) (138)
(150) - (810) (739) (562) (975) (4,638)
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Operating activities

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Adjustments for:

Net decrease/(increase) in transferable securities

Net decrease/(increase) in exchange-traded commodities
Unrealised gain/(loss) on open forward foreign currency exchange
contracts

Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Financing activities

Amounts received on issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed

Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of cash movement during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Bank overdraft at beginning of the year

Bank overdraft at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplementary information on cash flow from operating
activities:

Interest received

Dividend received

Taxation paid

Interest paid

* Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree

Germany WisdomTree WisdomTree UK Equity Emerging Asia Enhanced US Quality

Equity Japan Equity Europe Equity Income Equity Income Commodity Dividend Growth

UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

Note GBP USD USD GBP USD USD USD
(367,137) (17,874,491) (8,115,024) (2,860,438) (1,617,256) (33,236,216) 9,646,292
6,426,380 224,161,159 38,428,535 1,992,397 12,763,184 178,656,224 (29,826,996)

12,031 (623,796) 220,224 - - (523,507) -

- - - - - 9,569,083 -
900,177 449,901 (869,104) (156,837) 35,690 36,243,086 (7,155)

(676,457) 155,187 (24,841) (494) (6,097) (37,072,385) 1,925
6,294,994 206,267,960 29,639,790 (1,025,372) 11,175,521 153,636,285 (20,185,934)

5 1,725,976 23,426,281 12,865,639 2,668,105 2,065,820 124,524,260 50,277,448
5 (8,029,042) (229,588,731) (42,395,005) (1,672,599) (13,289,659) (278,210,345) (30,024,369)
(6,303,066) (206,162,450) (29,529,366) 995,506 (11,223,839) (153,686,085) 20,253,079

(8,072) 105,510 110,424 (29,866) (48,318) (49,800) 67,145

8,072 196,152 89,563 45,124 48,318 1,619,350 22,006

8,072 196,152 89,563 45,124 48,318 1,619,350 22,006

- - (348) - - - -

- 301,662 200,335 15,258 - 1,569,550 89,151

- 301,662 199,987 15,258 - 1,569,550 89,151

- 86 44 - 17 1,497,592 43

252,580 2,026,685 2,745,133 409,758 445,744 - 1,330,852
(29,158) (209,324) (238,300) (964) (57,043) - (200,814)
(965) (1,062) (1,161) (30) (60) (17,915) (53)
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Operating activities

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Adjustments for:

Net decrease/(increase) in transferable securities

Net decrease/(increase) in exchange-traded commodities

Options written

Unrealised loss on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Financing activities

Amounts received on issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed

Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of cash movement during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Bank overdraft at beginning of the year

Bank overdraft at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplementary information on cash flow from operating
activities:

Interest received

Dividend received

Taxation paid

Interest paid

*  Terminated 8 September 2020.
** Terminated 11 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

WisdomTree WisdomTree

EUR Aggregate EUR Government

WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree Bond ESG Bond ESG

Global Quality Eurozone Quality WisdomTree ATI CBOE S&P 500 Enhanced Enhanced
Dividend Growth Dividend Growth India Quality CoCo Bond PutWrite Yield Yield
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

Note UsD EUR Usb UsD UsD EUR EUR
5,542,638 1,641,923 555,381 10,115,556 (45,174) 268,778 195,526
8,521,312 (1,271,728) 4,897,987 (41,103,394) 774,871 (9,417,088) (224,186)

- - - - (6,212) - -

- - - (366,259) - - -

3,239,474 (15,713) 176,125 (638,148) - (45,441) 98,556
(3,224,493) 282,231 (197,075) 1,461,293 (583) 1,062 (81,975)
14,078,931 636,713 5,432,418 (30,530,952) 722,902 (9,192,689) (12,079)

5 58,342,327 10,862,860 1,862,957 65,877,226 228,904 11,052,434 -
5 (72,558,472) (11,175,880) (7,310,426) (34,771,047) (967,749) (1,855,623) -
(14,216,145) (313,020) (5,447,469) 31,106,179 (738,845) 9,196,811 -
(137,214) 323,693 (15,051) 575,227 (15,943) 4,122 (12,079)

265,125 44,700 15,051 655,168 15,943 5,355 15,408

265,125 44,700 15,051 655,168 15,943 5,355 15,408

127,911 368,393 - 1,230,395 - 9,477 3,329

127,911 368,393 - 1,230,395 - 9,477 3,329

396 - 19 4,151,373 530 19,624 37,021

1,180,503 422,811 84,496 - - - -

(140,636) (30,754) (29,072) (2,814) - - -

(40) (262) (501) (2,842) - (180) -
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020

Operating activities

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations

Adjustments for:

Net decrease/(increase) in transferable securities

Net decrease/(increase) in exchange-traded commodities

Unrealised gain on open forward foreign currency exchange contracts
Unrealised gain on total return swaps

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Financing activities

Amounts received on issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments for redeemable participating shares redeemed

Net cash flows (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Reconciliation of cash movement during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Bank overdraft at beginning of the year

Bank overdraft at end of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplementary information on cash flow from operating activities:

Interest received
Dividend received
Taxation paid
Interest paid

*  Launched 26 February 2020.
** Terminated 8 September 2020.

The information contained in this Statement is at a Sub-Fund Level.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

WisdomTree

WisdomTree WisdomTree USD WisdomTree

Japan SmallCap WisdomTree Artificial Floating Rate WisdomTree Battery
Dividend US Multifactor Intelligence Treasury Bond Cloud Computing Solutions

UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*

Note UsD Usb Usb UsD UsD UsD
(200,755) (18,152) 86,257,319 38,824 127,108,009 30,544,386
2,013,464 2,185,855 (230,858,992) (10,871,273) (474,184,776) (193,339,710)
4,648 2,185 (1,241,194) (528,336) - (5,312,166)

(846) (572) 1,261,330 538,777 14,710,387 4,757,653
1,816,511 2,169,316 (144,581,537) (10,822,008) (332,366,380) (163,349,837)

5 - - 184,628,826 19,942,310 443,740,930 163,410,833
5 (1,820,639) (2,175,749) (39,959,548) (9,116,225) (96,673,925) -
(1,820,639) (2,175,749) 144,669,278 10,826,085 347,067,005 163,410,833

(4,128) (6,433) 87,741 4,077 14,700,625 60,996

4,128 6,433 73,449 20,396 9,629 -

4,128 6,433 73,449 20,396 9,629 -
- - (43,449) - - (23,038,260)

- - 204,639 24,473 14,710,254 23,099,256

- - 161,190 24,473 14,710,254 60,996

1 3 215 75,406 52 27

34,447 30,387 929,615 - - 120,204
(4,714) (4,304) (163,273) - - (35,020)
- - (1,043) (45) 17) 95)
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 1A33F37A-3740-49AE-8BF3-49C9C174E5D8

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

1. General Information

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV (“ICAV”) is an open-ended Irish collective asset management vehicle which is
constituted as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds and with variable capital. The
ICAV was registered under the laws of Ireland with registered number C132923. The ICAV’s registered
office is 25-28 North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland. The ICAV was authorised and regulated by the Central
Bank under the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended, and under The Central Bank (Supervision And Enforcement)
Act 2013 (Section 48(1) (Undertakings For Collective Investment In Transferable Securities) Regulations
2019) (collectively the “Regulations”), together with the listing rules of the Euronext Dublin.

WisdomTree Management Limited (the “Manager”) and WisdomTree Ireland Limited are wholly owned
subsidiaries of WisdomTree Europe Holdings Limited. WisdomTree UK Limited is a wholly owned
subsidiary of WisdomTree International Holdings Limited.

For Swiss investors, the Prospectus, the articles, the document containing key information for investors
(“KIID”), the annual and semi-annual report, and the list of all purchases and sales made during the
period under consideration for the ICAV may be obtained free of charge from the Representative for
Switzerland, Société Générale, Paris, Zurich Branch, Talacker 50, PO Box 1928, CH — 8021 Zurich,
Switzerland. All Sub-Funds are listed on Euronext Dublin.

At 31 December 2021, the ICAV comprised 25 active sub-funds, (collectively the “Sub-Funds” or each
individually a “Sub-Fund”), (31 December 2020: 19 active sub-funds).

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and adopted
by the European Union (the “EU”), and Irish statute comprising the ICAV Act 2015 and the European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as
amended, and under The Central Bank (Supervision And Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)
(Undertakings For Collective Investment In Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019) (collectively the
“Regulations”).

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2021

There are no new standards, amendments or interpretations issued and effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2021 that have a significant impact on the ICAV s financial position, performance or
disclosures in its financial statements.

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2021 and not early adopted.

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” was issued in May 2017 and will become effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023. It applies to: insurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts,
issued by an entity; reinsurance contracts held by an entity; and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features issued by an entity that issues insurance contracts. An insurance contract is defined
as ‘a contract under which one party (the issuer) accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholder’. The new standard is not expected to have any impact on
the ICAV’s financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial statements.

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective
or that would be expected to have a significant impact on the ICAV.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

3.
3.1

Accounting Policies

Financial assets and financial liabilities

@

Classification

In accordance with IFRS 9, the ICAV classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at
initial recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed
below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset or financial liability is considered to be held
for trading if:

(a) Itisacquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near term

or

(b) On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking

or

(¢c) It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a
designated and effective hedging instrument)

Financial assets

The ICAV classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or
measured at fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

* The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
e The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its
contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The ICAV includes in this
category short-term non-financing receivables, accrued income and other receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if:

(a) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principaland interest on the principal amount outstanding

or

(b) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell

or

(c) Atinitial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases.

The objective to the ICAV is to track the returns of a specified index, and not to collect
contractual cash flows. As such, all investments held meet category (b) above and are
categorised as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. The ICAV
includes in this category equity investments, debt securities and derivative financial
instruments and measured at FVPL.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

3.
3.1

Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(@

(®)

(©

@

Classification (continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

A financial liability is measured at FVPL if it meets the definition of held for trading.
The ICAV includes in this category derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Recognition

All regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date — the date on
which the ICAV commits to purchase or sell the investment. Realised gains and losses
arising from the sale of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within net gain/(loss) on
investment activities and are calculated on a weighted average cost basis.

Initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (see Note 3.7).

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are recognised on the date on
which they originated and initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to their acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as part of net gain/(loss) on investment activities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are measured using the effective
interest method.

Expected Credit Loss

The Sub-Funds hold only receivables with no financing component and which have
maturities of less than 12 months at amortised cost and, as such, has chosen to apply an
approach similar to the simplified approach for expected credit losses (ECL) under [FRS
9 to all its receivables. Therefore, the Sub-Funds do not track changes in credit risk, but
instead, recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Sub-Funds’ approach to ECL reflects a probability weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

The Sub-Funds use the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLs on trade
receivables, based on past days due for groupings of receivables with similar loss patterns.
Receivables are grouped based on their nature. The provision matrix is based on historical
observed loss rates over the expected life of the receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

3.
3.1

Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(e

o

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
investment have expired or the ICAV has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

Listed Equities, Preferred Stock, Rights, Bonds and Exchange-traded Commodities

The fair value of financial assets traded in active markets, which includes listed equities,
preferred stock, rights, bonds and exchange-traded commodities, are based on quoted
market prices at the Statement of Financial Position date. The quoted market prices used for
these financial assets held by the Sub-Funds are the current last traded prices.

Un-listed Equity

If a quoted market price is not available on a recognised stock exchange or from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange traded financial instruments, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques, including use of recent arm’s length market
transactions, discounted cash flow techniques, option pricing models or any other valuation
technique that provides a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on
the Board of Directors (the “Board”) best estimates and the latest available weighted average
cost of capital for the ICAV at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Exchange Traded Funds (“ETFs”)

The fair value of investments in ETF’s, shall be valued at market value based on the last
traded price of the ETF.

Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

The fair value of open forward foreign currency exchange contracts is calculated as the
difference between the contracted rate and the current forward rate that would close out the
contract on the Statement of Financial Position date. Gains or losses on open forward
foreign currency exchange contracts are included in the unrealised gain or loss on open
forward foreign currency exchange contracts, as appropriate, on the Statement of Financial
Position.

Total Return Swaps

A swap is an agreement in which one party makes payments based on a set rate, either fixed
or variable, while the other party makes payments based on the return of an underlying asset,
which includes both the income it generates and any capital gains. In total return swaps, the
underlying asset, referred to as the reference asset, is usually an equity index, loan, or bond.
The fair value of the swaps is determined based on the mark to market valuation provided by
the counterparty and validated by the Administrator. In determining the mark to market
valuation, the counterparty makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
on each Statement of Financial Position date. Unrealised gains and losses on total return
swaps are included in the unrealised gain or loss on total return swaps in the Statement of
Financial Position.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

3.
3.1

3.2

33

34

3.5

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(f)  Fair value estimation (continued)
Options

The premium on written call options exercised is added to the proceeds from the sale of the
underlying security or foreign currency in determining the realised gain or loss. The
premium on written put options exercised is included in determining initial fair value of the
securities or foreign currencies purchased. Premiums received from written options which
expire unexercised are treated as realised gains. The option is subsequently marked to
market to reflect the fair value of the option written, which is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Unless stated elsewhere in the financial statements there have been no changes to the
valuation policies applied for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

Foreign Currency

(a)  Transactions and balances

Transactions during the financial year, including purchases and sales of securities, income
and expenses, are translated into the functional currency of each Sub-Fund using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Proceeds from subscriptions and amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating
shares are translated at average rates, which approximate the rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

All foreign currency transaction gains and losses are reported as part of the “net gain/(loss)
on investment activities” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency
of the Sub-Funds using the exchange rate prevailing at the Statement of Financial Position
date.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense, which relates to financial instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as it accrues in net gain/(loss) on
investment activities, using the coupon rate of the instrument and the period of time held.

Interest income, which relates to interest income from cash and cash equivalents, is recognised on a
time proportionate basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the relevant
Sub-Fund’s right to receive the payment has been established, normally being the ex-dividend date.
Dividend income is shown gross of any withholding taxes, which are disclosed separately in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, and net of any tax credits.

Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Expenses are charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Expenses arising on the disposal of investments are deducted from the
disposal proceeds.
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

3.6

3.7

3.8

39

3.10

3.11

Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and on demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investments or other purposes. Bank overdrafts are classified as
liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if a
Sub-Fund of the ICAV had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial asset.

Transaction costs on purchases and sales of financial instruments are included in “net gain/(loss) on
investment activities” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for each Sub-Fund. Separately
identifiable transaction costs incurred by Sub-Funds of the ICAV during the financial year are
disclosed in Note 6.

Redeemable participating shares

Each Sub-Fund issues redeemable participating shares, which are redeemable at the holder’s option
and are classified as financial liabilities as there are multiple share classes in issue without identical
features, in accordance with IAS 32.

The redeemable participating share is carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the
Statement of Financial Position date.

Redeemable participating shares are issued and redeemed at the holder’s option at prices based on
the Sub-Fund’s Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per share at the time of issue or redemption, and
accounted for on the day the trade transaction takes place. The Sub-Fund’s NAV per share is
calculated by dividing the net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable participating shares
by the total number of outstanding redeemable participating shares. Net assets are valued for
dealing purposes in accordance with the provisions of the ICAV regulations.

Distributions

The Directors intend to distribute all or substantially all of the net income (interest and dividends,
less expenses) of the Sub-Funds attributable to distributing share classes. Distributions shall be
payable in the currency of denomination of a Sub-Fund’s distributing share class to shareholders.

Distributions with an ex-date during the financial period under review are included as a finance
cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The reinvestment of the deemed distribution if
applicable, being the portion of the total distribution reinvested, is included as a share transaction in
the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares.

Debtors and Creditors

All debtors and creditors fall due within one year. Trade and other creditors are payable at various
dates in accordance with the suppliers usual and customary credit terms.

Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
certain accounting estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the ICAV accounting policies. Actual results may differ from
those estimates and assumptions. The Directors believe that the estimates used in preparing the
financial statements are reasonable and prudent.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and changes in tax
laws on foreign withholding tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences
arising between the actual investment income and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The ICAV
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

3. Accounting Policies (continued)

3.11 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)

tax authorities of the respective countries in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions are
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of
tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of
interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the
respective investment’s domicile. As the ICAV assesses the probability for cash outflow with
respect to taxes as remote, no liability has been recognised.

3.12 Going Concern

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the ICAV has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the forseeable future. In addition, the Board is not
aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the ICAV’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the annual report and accounts.

3.13 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amounts reported in the Statement of
Financial Position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Although there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, the
full criteria have not been met, and no financial assets or financial liabilities have been offset in the
Statement of Financial Position.

3.14 Equalisation

Income equalisation arrangements apply to each Sub-Fund. The arrangements are intended to
ensure that the income per Share which is distributed in respect of the distribution period is not
affected by changes in the number of Shares in issue during the period. The arrangements have no
effect on the Net Asset Value of any Share Class. The calculation of equalisation is based on total
accumulated undistributed net income.

3.15 Unsettled trades

Trades for settlement comprise amounts due to/due from brokers. Amounts due from brokers are
presented within Assets as “Receivable for investments sold” on the Statement of Financial Position
and represent amounts receivable from the sale of securities. Amounts due to brokers are presented
within Liabilities as “Payable for investments purchased” on the Statement of Financial Position
and represent amounts payable on the purchase of securities.

4. Net gain/(loss) on investment activities

Financial year ended 31 December 2021

WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
US Equity Europe Equity  Europe SmallCap
Income Income Dividend
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
USD EUR EUR
Net gain/(loss) on investment activities

Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss — — —
Realised gain on investment activities 4,137,841 1,885,765 8,128,638
Unrealised gain on investment activities 5,920,691 1,135,805 136,526
10,058,532 3,021,570 8,265,164
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4. Net gain/(loss) on investment activities (continued)

Financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised gain on investment activities
Unrealised loss on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised gain on investment activities
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised gain on investment activities
Unrealised gain on investment activities

WisdomTree

WisdomTree Emerging

Emerging Markets
Markets SmallCap WisdomTree
Equity Income Dividend Japan Equity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
USD USD USD
4,313,691 3,334,586 8,031,151
(1,206,889) (229,262) (3,010,851)
3,106,802 3,105,324 5,020,300
WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree UK Equity Enhanced
Europe Equity Income Commodity
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
USD GBP USD
— — 114,472
19,043,285 542,154 42,296,603
(4,185,741) 251,432 8,356,321
14,857,544 793,586 50,767,396
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
US Quality Global Quality  Eurozone Quality
Dividend Growth ~ Dividend Growth ~ Dividend Growth
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
USD USD EUR
6,553,957 2,850,583 3,819,557
14,242,166 12,186,332 1,895,491
20,796,123 15,036,915 5,715,048
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4. Net gain/(loss) on investment activities (continued)

Financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised (loss)/gain on investment activities
Unrealised loss on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised gain on investment activities
Unrealised loss on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised gain/(loss) on investment activities
Unrealised loss on investment activities

WisdomTree WisdomTree
EUR Aggregate  EUR Government
WisdomTree Bond ESG Bond ESG
ATI Enhanced Enhanced
CoCo Bond Yield Yield
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
USD EUR EUR
9,077,131 85,515 33,128
(4,232,837) (65,744) 69,346
(6,726,257) (497,149) (240,348)
(1,881,963) (477,378) (137,874)

WisdomTree

WisdomTree USD
Artificial Floating Rate WisdomTree
Intelligence Treasury Bond  Cloud Computing
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
USD USD USD
— 26,028 —
52,813,356 3,766 107,458,259
(8,058,104) (4,802)  (118,455,765)
44,755,252 24,992 (10,997,506)
WisdomTree WisdomTree
Battery WisdomTree European
Solutions Cybersecurity Union Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF* UCITS ETF**
USD USD EUR
— — 18,698
48,341,083 965,878 (190,702)
(23,516,731) (1,280,522) (321,151)
24,824,352 (314,644) (493,155)
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4. Net gain/(loss) on investment activities (continued)

Financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised (loss)/gain on investment activities
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Realised gain on investment activities
Unrealised gain on investment activities

* Launched 25 January 2021.
wx Launched 15 February 2021.
ok Launched 7 July 2021.

##d%k Launched 18 August 2021.
*axx%  Launched 29 November 2021.
*xxx%% Launched 3 December 2021.

Financial year ended 31 December 2020

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised loss on investment activities
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investment activities

WisdomTree

WisdomTree Emerging Markets
Enhanced ex-State-Owned WisdomTree
Commodity Enterprises Broad
ex-Agriculture ESG Screened Commodities
UCITS ETF*** UCITS ETF****  UCITS ETF*****
USD USD USD
12,250 — 46
(605,893) 15,384 (29,084)
(593,929) (128,478) 39,901
(1,187,572) (113,094) 10,863
WisdomTree
BioRevolution
UCITS ETF**%%%%
USD
67
24,942
25,009
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
US Equity US SmallCap Europe Equity
Income Dividend Income
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF
USD USD EUR
(4,590,956) (2,013,817) (10,616,586)
(1,957,623) (273,791) 261,322
(6,548,579) (2,287,608) (10,355,264)
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4. Net gain/(loss) on investment activities (continued)

Financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised loss on investment activities
Unrealised gain/(loss) on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised gain/(loss) on investment activities
Unrealised loss on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised loss on investment activities
Unrealised gain/(loss) on investment activities

WisdomTree
WisdomTree Emerging
WisdomTree Emerging Markets
Europe SmallCap Markets SmallCap
Dividend Equity Income Dividend
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
EUR USD USD
(5,983,877) (5,858,129) (2,504,821)
1,863,952 (234,849) 2,024,157
(4,119,925) (6,092,978) (480,664)
WisdomTree
WisdomTree Germany WisdomTree
ISEQ 20® Equity Japan Equity
UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF
EUR GBP USD
3,740,045 (172,905) (12,417,296)
(5,183,490) (219,585) (4,072,323)
(1,443 445) (392,490)  (16,489,619)
WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree UK Equity Emerging Asia
Europe Equity Income Equity Income
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF**
USD GBP USD
(17,662,043) (2,968,327) (916,698)
8,138,390 180,020 (596,534)
(9,523,653) (2,788,307) (1,513,232)
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4. Net gain/(loss) on investment activities (continued)

Financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised (loss)/gain on investment activities
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised gain on investment activities
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investment activities

Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Realised (loss)/gain on investment activities
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investment activities

WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
Enhanced US Quality Global Quality
Commodity  Dividend Growth — Dividend Growth
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
USD USD USD
1,494,920 — —
(26,069,268) 3,706,933 1,487,588
(7,988,914) 5,100,194 3,284,046
(32,563,262) 8,807,127 4,771,634
WisdomTree WisdomTree
Eurozone Quality WisdomTree ATI
Dividend Growth India Quality CoCo Bond
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF
EUR USD USD

— — 4,789,286

1,620,509 856,663 2,175,895
(235,215) (326,525) 7,438,893
1,385,294 530,138 14,404,074
WisdomTree WisdomTree

EUR Aggregate  EUR Government

WisdomTree Bond ESG Bond ESG
CBOE S&P 500 Enhanced Enhanced
PutWrite Yield Yield
UCITS ETF*** UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
USD EUR EUR

523 52,741 35,981

(41,299) 28,928 48,125
(2,634) 227,975 127,523
(43,410) 309,644 211,629
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4. Net gain/(loss) on investment activities (continued)

Financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree WisdomTree
Japan SmallCap WisdomTree Artificial
Dividend US Multifactor Intelligence
UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF** UCITS ETF
USD USD USD
Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss — — —
Realised (loss)/gain on investment activities (199,436) 96,359 12,115,795
Unrealised (loss)/gain on investment activities (3,556) (128,294) 73,784,239
(202,992) (31,935) 85,900,034
WisdomTree
USD WisdomTree
Floating Rate WisdomTree Battery
Treasury Bond  Cloud Computing Solutions
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF*
USD USD USD
Net gain/(loss) on investment activities
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 58,364 — —
Realised gain on investment activities 10,817 22,828,104 5,240,948
Unrealised gain on investment activities 2,548 104,957,063 25,204,225
71,729 127,785,167 30,445,173

*  Launched 26 February 2020.
**  Terminated 8 September 2020.
*** Terminated 11 September 2020.

5. Share Capital
Authorised

The authorised share capital of the ICAV is EUR 2 divided into 2 subscriber shares of a par value of EUR
1 each and 500,000,000,000 redeemable shares of no par value. At 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020, there were 2 subscriber shares in issue at EUR 1 each. The subscriber shares are held by
WisdomTree UK Limited and WisdomTree Management Limited. The holders of subscriber shares shall
be entitled to one vote per share and shall not be entitled to any distributions whatsoever in respect of their
holding of those shares. In the event of liquidation, the subscriber shares, after payment to the
shareholders of each Sub-Fund, entitle the holders to receive the nominal amount paid thereof out of the
assets of the ICAV not comprised within any Sub-Funds, with no recourse to the assets of each Sub-Fund
should there be insufficient assets to enable the payment. The subscriber shares do not form part of the
Net Asset Value of the ICAV and are thus only disclosed in the financial statements by way of this note.

Redeemable participating shares

The issued redeemable participating share capital for each Sub-Fund is at all times equal to the NAV of
that Sub-Fund. Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the Shareholders’ option and are
classified as financial liabilities. The redeemable participating shares may also be bought and sold in a
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5. Share Capital (continued)

Redeemable participating shares (continued)

secondary market where such a market exists. All issued share capital has been fully paid up except for
amounts receivable from holders of redeemable participating shares as disclosed in the Statement of
Financial Position. All shares shall rank pari passu and none of the Shareholders will have any different

voting rights to other Shareholders.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF

DHSF
DHSA DHSG GBP EUR Hedged
DHS Acc Hedged Acc Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 739,894 1,455,101 379,189 8,073 2,582,257
Shares issued 587,764 807,558 65,000 — 1,460,322
Shares redeemed (592,508) (303,181) (210,000) —  (1,105,689)
Balance at end of financial year 735,150 1,959,478 234,189 8,073 2,936,890
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 12,391,674 18,426,700 1,586,429 — 32,404,803
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 77,109 2,237,732 176,014 — 2,490,855
Payments for shares redeemed (12,539,859) (6,395,254) (4,995,344) — (23,930,457)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 75,314 803,112 570,957 — 1,449,383
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF
EEIA
EEI Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,732,717 352,386 2,085,103
Shares issued — 85,282 85,282
Shares redeemed (107,987) (178,000) (285,987)
Balance at end of financial year 1,624,730 259,668 1,884,398
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR
Proceeds from shares issued — 1,289,525 1,289,525
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions — 249,221 249,221
Payments for shares redeemed (1,289,529) (2,688,245) (3,977,774)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 34,599 514,456 549,055
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF
DFEA
DFE Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,609,262 262,191 1,871,453
Shares issued 308,495 355,866 664,361
Shares redeemed (163,702) (57,491) (221,193)
Balance at end of financial year 1,754,055 560,566 2,314,621
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR
Proceeds from shares issued 6,163,201 6,735,636 12,898,837
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 59,224 600,333 659,557
Payments for shares redeemed (3,272,580) (1,060,070) (4,332,650)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 28,726 88,927 117,653
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF

DEMR
DEM Ace Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 2,583,191 190,558 2,773,749
Shares issued 647,355 55,000 702,355
Shares redeemed (78,313) (162,000) (240,313)
Balance at end of financial year 3,152,233 83,558 3,235,791
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 10,459,643 1,177,773 11,637,416
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 224,715 197,852 422,567
Payments for shares redeemed (1,177,776)  (3,471,919) (4,649,695)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 6,500 580,096 586,596
WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF
DGSE
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,630,000
Shares issued 250,000
Shares redeemed =
Balance at end of financial year 1,880,000
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 5,115,014
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 42,838
Payments for shares redeemed —
Income Equalisation — Redemptions —
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF
DXJD
DXJ DXJA USD DXJP CHF DXJF EUR DXJZ
USD Hedged  Hedged ACC ~ GBP Hedged Hedged Acc Hedged Acc JPY Acc Total
Balance at beginning of
financial year 1,169,109 385,675 89,539 85,650 201,551 189,960 2,121,484
Shares issued 464,742 293,040 450,000 150,000 830,000 1,319,986 3,507,768
Shares redeemed (867,371) (142,857) (155,000) (150,000) (760,000) (1,365,000) (3,440,228)
Balance at end of
financial year 766,480 535,858 384,539 85,650 271,551 144,946 2,189,024
Value of Share
Transactions USD USD USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares
issued 8,097,763 6,129,347 7,273,987 3,328,606 17,912,927 30,441,962 73,184,592
Income Equalisation —
Subscriptions 28,666 389,726 27,015 231,855 1,369,223 2,442,033 4,488,518
Payments for shares
redeemed (15,878,833) (2,966,706) (2,596,330) (3,328,362) (16,367,873) (31,213,310) (72,351,414)
Income Equalisation —
Redemptions 114,672 188,803 1,132 230,340 1,254,035 2,522,943 4,311,925
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF

HEDJ HEDK USD HEDP HEDD CHF HEDF
USD Hedged Hedged Acc GBP Hedged Hedged Acc EUR Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,112,015 2,858,523 131,454 7,703 269,545 4,379,240
Shares issued 109,377 1,176,004 70,000 70,000 — 1,425,381
Shares redeemed (54,842) (2,382,110) — — (90,000) (2,526,952)
Balance at end of financial year 1,166,550 1,652,417 201,454 77,703 179,545 3,277,669
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 2,269,219 29,836,566 1,207,419 1,617,447 — 34,930,651
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 5,870 1,958,530 1,624 133,518 — 2,099,542
Payments for shares redeemed (1,186,500) (57,380,069) — —  (2,155,697) (60,722,266)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 566 3,734,568 — — 178,164 3,913,298
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF
WUKD
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,800,000
Shares issued 280,000
Shares redeemed —
Balance at end of financial year 2,080,000
Value of Share Transactions GBP
Proceeds from shares issued 1,264,368
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 33,110
Payments for shares redeemed —
Income Equalisation — Redemptions —
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF
WCOM GBP WCOE EUR COMS CHF
WCOG WCOA Acc Hedged Acc Hedged Acc Hedged Acc
USD USD USD USD USD Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 575,000 8,575,000 1,175,000 1,625,000 160,000 12,110,000
Shares issued 29,525,000 11,925,000 2,350,000 5,675,000 100,000 49,575,000
Shares redeemed (250,000) (4,400,000) (1,500,000) (4,550,000) — (10,700,000)
Balance at end of financial year 29,850,000 16,100,000 2,025,000 2,750,000 260,000 50,985,000
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 382,259,990 148,161,623 35,783,752 72,903,755 1,274,698 640,383,818
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions — 9,049,053 4,390,510 139,973 1,378 13,580,914
Payments for shares redeemed (4,203,660) (54,060,623) (23,394,372) (61,709,741) —(143,368,396)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions — 3,343,863 2,793,950 54,803 — 6,192,616
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WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

DGRW DGRA
USD USD Acce Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 436,031 1,947,843 2,383,874
Shares issued 55,000 3,005,298 3,060,298
Shares redeemed (258,398) (180,705) (439,103)
Balance at end of financial year 232,633 4,772,436 5,005,069
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 1,676,040 104,218,073 105,894,113
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 3,831 6,633,691 6,637,522
Payments for shares redeemed (7,495,992) (5,938,562) (13,434,554)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 20,256 369,300 389,556
WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF
GGRW GGRA
USD USD Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 183,660 1,750,284 1,933,944
Shares issued 435,784 2,445,617 2,881,401
Shares redeemed (173,936) (58,414) (232,350)
Balance at end of financial year 445,508 4,137,487 4,582,995
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 13,202,802 82,324,177 95,526,979
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 66,642 4,937,948 5,004,590
Payments for shares redeemed (5,400,938) (1,959,277) (7,360,215)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 36,769 117,276 154,045
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF
EGRW EGRA
EUR EUR Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 658,816 654,042 1,312,858
Shares issued 50,000 1,307,140 1,357,140
Shares redeemed (258,725) (43,354) (302,079)
Balance at end of financial year 450,091 1,917,828 2,367,919
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR
Proceeds from shares issued 1,031,119 32,070,862 33,101,981
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 5,354 1,718,868 1,724,222
Payments for shares redeemed (4,958,281) (1,031,133) (5,989,414)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 27,259 56,090 83,349
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WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF

CCBO COCB CODOUSD ~ COBOEUR  COGO GBP

USD USD Acc Hedged Hedged Hedged Total

Balance at beginning of financial year 491,081 42,463 17,006 279,036 34,640 864,226
Shares issued 165,385 81,597 97,900 246,000 593,833 1,184,715
Shares redeemed (33,514) (6,012) — (29,722) (45,752) (115,000)
Balance at end of financial year 622,952 118,048 114,906 495,314 582,721 1,933,941
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 17,172,269 10,100,190 10,903,174 30,324,342 88,429,072 156,929,047
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 305,517 1,561,702 179,490 487,898 2,104,386 4,638,993
Payments for shares redeemed (3,512,841) (741,589) — (3,519,175) (6,337,222) (14,110,827)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 62,653 112,662 — 86,318 162,969 424,602

WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF

YLD EYLD EUR

EUR Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 210,439 59,498 269,937
Shares issued 101,301 51,290 152,591
Shares redeemed (178,854) (20,797) (199,651)
Balance at end of financial year 132,886 89,991 222,877
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR
Proceeds from shares issued 5,536,217 2,852,151 8,388,368
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 4,817 67,003 71,820
Payments for shares redeemed (9,712,349) (1,157,645) (10,869,994)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 12,859 28,062 40,921

WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF

GOVE WGOV EUR

EUR Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 19,908 40,000 59,908
Shares issued — 7,000 7,000
Shares redeemed (7,165) — (7,165)
Balance at end of financial year 12,743 47,000 59,743
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR
Proceeds from shares issued — 404,333 404,333
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions — 9,456 9,456
Payments for shares redeemed (404,370) — (404,370)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 557 — 557
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETF

WTAI USD
Acc
Balance at beginning of financial year 4,532,541
Shares issued 4,309,000
Shares redeemed (1,256,000)
Balance at end of financial year 7,585,541
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 283,109,888
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 542,718
Payments for shares redeemed (78,053,049)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 157,801
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF
USFR TFRN
USD USD Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 26,000 353,822 379,822
Shares issued 2,500 321,918 324,418
Shares redeemed (12,117) (2,458) (14,575)
Balance at end of financial year 16,383 673,282 689,665
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 125,324 16,413,400 16,538,724
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 22 68,148 68,170
Payments for shares redeemed (607,640) (125,297) (732,937)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions 266 501 767
WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS ETF
WCLD
USD Acc
Balance at beginning of financial year 9,130,000
Shares issued 7,561,000
Shares redeemed (5,061,000)
Balance at end of financial year 11,630,000
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 408,985,745

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions

WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions

WisdomTree European Union Bond UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions
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VOLT
USD Acc

4,457,534
8,763,000
(175,000)

13,045,534

USD
431,838,133
2,426,513
(7,757,013)
32,180

WCBR
USD Acc*

2,871,533

2,871,533

USD
74,667,618
152,300

EUBO
EUR Acc**

165,000
(8,000)
157,000

EUR
16,348,522

(766,787)
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF

WXAG

EXAG USD
EUR Acc*** AccH*rx*® Total
Balance at beginning of financial year — — —
Shares issued 6,825,000 50,000 6,875,000
Shares redeemed — (25,000) (25,000)
Balance at end of financial year 6,825,000 25,000 6,850,000
Value of Share Transactions EUR USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 79,958,553 508,573 80,467,126
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions — — —
Payments for shares redeemed — (257,615) (257,615)

Income Equalisation — Redemptions — — _

WisdomTree Emerging Markets ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG Screened UCITS ETF

XSOE
USD

ACC****
Balance at beginning of financial year —
Shares issued 120,000
Shares redeemed —

Balance at end of financial year 120,000
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 3,014,083
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 3,876

Payments for shares redeemed —
Income Equalisation — Redemptions —

WisdomTree Broad Commodities UCITS ETF

PCOM
USD

ACC******

Balance at beginning of financial year —
Shares issued 125,000
Shares redeemed I —

Balance at end of financial year 125,000
Value of Share Transactions USD

Proceeds from shares issued 1,244,580
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions —
Payments for shares redeemed —
Income Equalisation — Redemptions —

105



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1A33F37A-3740-49AE-8BF3-49C9C174E5D8

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

5. Share Capital (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS ETF

WDNA
USD
ACC*******
Balance at beginning of financial year —
Shares issued 30,000
Shares redeemed =
Balance at end of financial year 30,000
Value of Share Transactions USD Acc
Proceeds from shares issued 732,185
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions —
Payments for shares redeemed —
Income Equalisation — Redemptions —
* Launched 25 January 2021.
K Launched 15 February 2021.
ok Launched 7 July 2021.
oAk Launched 18 August 2021.
##dk% Launched 6 October 2021.
*HFx%k*  Launched 29 November 2021.
wHdkxE% Launched 3 December 2021.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF
DHSF
DHSA ~ DHSG GBP  EUR Hedged
DHS Acc Hedged Acc Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,701,891 1,080,962 149,189 13,073 2,945,115
Shares issued 1,124,381 497,893 350,000 65,000 2,037,274
Shares redeemed (2,086,378) (123,754) (120,000) (70,000) (2,400,132)
Balance at end of financial year 739,894 1,455,101 379,189 8,073 2,582,257
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 20,533,268 9,822,492 6,647,217 867,075 37,870,052
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 157,853 999,134 840,945 124,027 2,121,959
Payments for shares redeemed (37,755,166)  (2,242,910) (2,074,972) (1,208,947) (43,281,995)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (292,508) (286,670) (251,928) (143,486) (974,592)
WisdomTree US SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF
DESE**
Balance at beginning of financial year 555,000
Shares issued 130,000
Shares redeemed (685,000)
Balance at end of financial year —
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 1,818,792
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 20,007
Payments for shares redeemed (10,727,490)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (83,947)
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF

EEIA
EEI Ace Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 2,923,537 235,475 3,159,012
Shares issued 50,000 268,000 318,000
Shares redeemed (1,240,820) (151,089) (1,391,909)
Balance at end of financial year 1,732,717 352,386 2,085,103
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR
Proceeds from shares issued 672,520 3,917,670 4,590,190
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 1,245 556,484 557,729
Payments for shares redeemed (12,561,140) (2,019,742) (14,580,882)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (187,470) (352,643) (540,113)
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF
DFEA
DFE Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 2,276,536 309,737 2,586,273
Shares issued 972,726 218,955 1,191,681
Shares redeemed (1,640,000) (266,501) (1,906,501)
Balance at end of financial year 1,609,262 262,191 1,871,453
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR
Proceeds from shares issued 14,948,497 3,009,224 17,957,721
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 52,057 252,530 304,587
Payments for shares redeemed (25,312,778) (3,536,614) (28,849,392)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (103,730) (332,272) (436,002)
WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF
DEMR
DEM Ace Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 2,504,119 386,943 2,891,062
Shares issued 179,072 197,290 376,362
Shares redeemed (100,000) (393,675) (493,675)
Balance at end of financial year 2,583,191 190,558 2,773,749
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 2,406,397 4,151,125 6,557,522
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 41,643 574,105 615,748
Payments for shares redeemed (1,339,780) (7,244,459) (8,584,239)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (29,400) (1,218,547) (1,247,947)
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5. Share Capital (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions

WisdomTree ISEQ 20® UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions

WisdomTree Germany Equity UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions

DXGP
GBP
Hedged**

288,156

(288,156)

DGSE
2,000,000
250,000
(620,000)
1,630,000

USD
3,864,386
47,638
(9,537,501)
(116,652)

ISEQ**
1,300,000

(1,300,000)

EUR

(17,437,921)
(80,090)

DXGD
CHF
Hedged DXGE DXGY
Acc**  USD Hedged EUR Acc** Total

45,884 79,345 127,102 540,487
— — 140,000 140,000
(45,884)  (79.345)  (267,102)  (680.487)

GBP

(2,721,669)
(24,375)

GBP GBP GBP GBP
1,725,976 1,725,976
— — 180,278 180,278

(670,260) (1,036,985) (3,600,128) (8,029,042)

(64,022)  (10,990)  (371,487)  (470.874)
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF

DXJD
DXJ  DXJAUSD DXJP CHF  DXJFEUR DXJZ
USD Hedged  Hedged ACC  GBP Hedged Hedged Acc Hedged Acc JPY Acc Total
Balance at beginning of
financial year 12,332,204 902,064 89,539 185,650 551,551 1,409,960 15,470,968
Shares issued 600,000 391,111 — 150,000 200,000 180,000 1,521,111
Shares redeemed (11,763,095) (907,500) — (250,000) (550,000) (1,400,000) (14,870,595)
Balance at end of
financial year 1,169,109 385,675 89,539 85,650 201,551 189,960 2,121,484
Value of Share
Transactions USD USD USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares
issued 7,771,821 6,667,017 — 2,280,245 3,429,800 3,277,398 23,426,281
Income Equalisation —
Subscriptions 53,660 352,524 — 204,615 202,140 209,313 1,022,252
Payments for shares
redeemed (175,339,368) (15,223,637) — (4,377,864) (7,551,072) (27,096,790)(229,588,731)
Income Equalisation —
Redemptions (452,777) (863,508) — (337,600) (554,365) (1,579,205) (3,787,455)
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF
HEDJ  HEDK USD HEDP  HEDD CHF HEDF
USD Hedged Hedged Acc - GBP Hedged Hedged Acc EUR Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,982,527 3,334,109 421,454 7,703 424,545 6,170,338
Shares issued 257,939 300,000 140,000 — — 697,939
Shares redeemed (1,128,451) (775,586) (430,000) — (155,000) (2,489,037)
Balance at end of financial year 1,112,015 2,858,523 131,454 7,703 269,545 4,379,240
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 4,398,984 6,656,794 1,809,861 — — 12,865,639
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 21,659 342,422 6,748 — — 370,829
Payments for shares redeemed (18,061,059) (15,756,037) (5,773,572) —  (2,804,337) (42,395,005)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (118,792) (1,019,641) (58,020) — (200,462) (1,396,915)
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF
WUKD
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,680,000
Shares issued 560,000
Shares redeemed (440,000)
Balance at end of financial year 1,800,000
Value of Share Transactions GBP
Proceeds from shares issued 2,668,105
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 26,880
Payments for shares redeemed (1,672,599)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (40,930)
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree Emerging Asia Equity Income UCITS ETF

DEMA**
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,125,000
Shares issued 225,000
Shares redeemed (1,350,000)
Balance at end of financial year —
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 2,065,820
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 13,095
Payments for shares redeemed (13,289,659)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (250,408)
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF
WCOM GBP WCOE EUR COMS CHF
wWCOoG WCOA Acc Hedged Acc Hedged Acc Hedged Acc
USD USD USD USD USD Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 525,000 28,875,000 100,000 925,000 25,000 30,450,000
Shares issued 825,000 8,600,000 1,450,000 1,150,000 135,000 12,160,000
Shares redeemed (775,000) (28,900,000) (375,000) (450,000) — (30,500,000)
Balance at end of financial year 575,000 8,575,000 1,175,000 1,625,000 160,000 12,110,000
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 8,025,723 86,436,672 17,382,735 11,309,377 1,369,753 124,524,260
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 10,713 4,644,415 2,317,945 12,388 6,210 6,991,671
Payments for shares redeemed (7,465,235)(262,164,172)  (4,277,990) (4,302,948) —(278,210,345)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (15,265) (5,514,758) (426,010) (6,168) —  (5,962,201)
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF
DGRW DGRA
USD USD Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 110,152 1,425,012 1,535,164
Shares issued 1,313,000 705,000 2,018,000
Shares redeemed (987,121) (182,169) (1,169,290)
Balance at end of financial year 436,031 1,947,843 2,383,874
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 33,489,824 16,787,624 50,277,448
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 129,333 1,110,261 1,239,594
Payments for shares redeemed (25,531,268) (4,493,101) (30,024,369)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (110,478) (306,521) (416,999)
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5.

Share Capital (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions

WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions

WisdomTree India Quality UCITS ETF

Balance at beginning of financial year
Shares issued
Shares redeemed

Balance at end of financial year

Value of Share Transactions
Proceeds from shares issued

Income Equalisation — Subscriptions
Payments for shares redeemed
Income Equalisation — Redemptions

GGRW GGRA
USD USD Acc Total
85,517 2,489,140 2,574,657
311,750 1,993,788 2,305,538
(213,607) (2,732,644) (2,946,251)
183,660 1,750,284 1,933,944
USD USD USD
7,110,722 51,231,605 58,342,327
34,266 2,440,682 2,474,948
(5,046,678) (67,511,794) (72,558,472)
(28,056) (3,254,197) (3,282.253)

EGRW EGRA
EUR EUR Acc Total
351,881 922,010 1,273,891
354,754 291,032 645,786
(47,819)  (559,000)  (606,819)
658,816 654,042 1,312,858
EUR EUR EUR
5,289,377 5,573,483 10,862,860
21,220 280,619 301,839
(820,686) (10,355,194) (11,175,880)
(4383)  (530,209)  (534,592)

EPIQ EPIE
USD** USD Acc** Total
74,370 200,083 274,453
130,179 — 130,179
(204,549)  (200,083)  (404,632)
USD USD USD
1,862,957 — 1,862,957
7,758 — 7,758
(3,663,563) (3,646,863) (7,310,426)
(11,496)  (66,968) (78,464

111



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1A33F37A-3740-49AE-8BF3-49C9C174E5D8

WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF

CCBO COCB CODOUSD ~ COBOEUR  COGO GBP
USD USD Acc Hedged Hedged Hedged Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 457,396 7,435 17,006 62,509 12,040 556,386
Shares issued 381,685 35,028 16,000 216,527 22,600 671,840
Shares redeemed (348,000) — (16,000) — — (364,000)
Balance at end of financial year 491,081 42,463 17,006 279,036 34,640 864,226
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 33,638,147 3,905,256 1,700,042 23,846,607 2,787,174 65,877,226
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 611,983 492,951 33,720 435,540 51,414 1,625,608
Payments for shares redeemed (33,054,985) —  (1,716,062) — — (34,771,047)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (496,715) — (21,915) — — (518,630)
WisdomTree CBOE S&P 500 PutWrite UCITS ETF
PUTW USD
ACC***
Balance at beginning of financial year 15,000
Shares issued 5,000
Shares redeemed (20,000)
Balance at end of financial year —
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 228,904
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 7,792
Payments for shares redeemed (967,749)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (30,726)
WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF
YLD EYLD EUR
EUR Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 64,506 40,399 104,905
Shares issued 162,243 36,000 198,243
Shares redeemed (16,310) (16,901) (33,211)
Balance at end of financial year 210,439 59,498 269,937
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR
Proceeds from shares issued 9,026,054 2,026,380 11,052,434
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 25,619 42,271 67,890
Payments for shares redeemed (905,689) (949,934) (1,855,623)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (2,410) (19,945) (22,355)
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF
GOVE ~ WGOV EUR

EUR Ace Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 19,908 40,000 59,908
Shares issued — — —
Shares redeemed — — —
Balance at end of financial year 19,908 40,000 59,908
Value of Share Transactions EUR EUR EUR

Proceeds from shares issued — _ _
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions — — _
Payments for shares redeemed — _ _
Income Equalisation — Redemptions — — _

WisdomTree Japan SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF
DFJ  DFJA USD

USD** Acc** Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 20,000 20,000 40,000
Shares issued — — —
Shares redeemed (20,000) (20,000) (40,000)
Balance at end of financial year — — —
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued — — —
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions — — —
Payments for shares redeemed (893,690) (926,949) (1,820,639)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (584) (34,058) (34,642)

WisdomTree US Multifactor UCITS ETF
USMF ~ FCTR USD

USD** Acc** Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 10,000 30,000 40,000
Shares issued — — —
Shares redeemed (10,000) (30,000) (40,000)
Balance at end of financial year — — —
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued — — —
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions — — —
Payments for shares redeemed (532,535) (1,643,214) (2,175,749)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (962) (43,308) (44,270)
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETF

WTAI USD
Acc
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,126,000
Shares issued 4,431,000
Shares redeemed (1,024,459)
Balance at end of financial year 4,532,541
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 184,628,826
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 238,508
Payments for shares redeemed (39,959,548)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (71,623)
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF
USFR TFRN
USD USD Acc Total
Balance at beginning of financial year 40,000 127,458 167,458
Shares issued 66,000 326,364 392,364
Shares redeemed (80,000) (100,000) (180,000)
Balance at end of financial year 26,000 353,822 379,822
Value of Share Transactions USD USD USD
Proceeds from shares issued 3,316,751 16,625,559 19,942,310
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions — 6,611 6,611
Payments for shares redeemed (4,021,305) (5,094,920) (9,116,225)
Income Equalisation — Redemptions (2,658) — (2,658)
WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS ETF
WCLD
USD Acc
Balance at beginning of financial year 305,000
Shares issued 11,028,000
Shares redeemed (2,203,000)
Balance at end of financial year 9,130,000
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 443,740,930
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions —
Payments for shares redeemed (96,673,925)

Income Equalisation — Redemptions —
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5. Share Capital (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF
VOLT
USD Acc*

Balance at beginning of financial year —
Shares issued 4,457,534
Shares redeemed —

Balance at end of financial year 4,457,534
Value of Share Transactions USD
Proceeds from shares issued 163,410,833
Income Equalisation — Subscriptions 492,297

Payments for shares redeemed —
Income Equalisation — Redemptions —

*  Launched 26 February 2020.
**  Terminated 8 September 2020.
*** Terminated 11 September 2020.

6. Fees and Expenses

Establishment expenses

All fees and expenses relating to the organisation and establishment of the ICAV and the Sub-Funds are
borne by the Manager.

Management Fees

All of the fees and expenses payable in respect of a Sub-Fund are paid as one single fee. This is referred to
as the “Management Fees”. WisdomTree Management Limited, (the “Manager”), is responsible for
discharging all operational expenses from the amount received by it out of the Management Fees,
including but not limited to, fees of the Investment Managers, Depositary, Administrator, Secretary,
Distributors, Directors, Auditors, legal and other professional advisers of the ICAV, Central Bank of
Ireland industry funding levy, statutory fees and any relevant regulatory filing fees, listing of shares on
any stock exchange, costs of publication of the net asset value per share, registrar and transfer agency
services and preparing, printing and distributing the Prospectus, Supplements and KIIDs.

The Management Fees payable in respect of each Sub-Fund and Share Class is listed below:
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees % 2020 Management Fees %
USD (“DHS”) 0.29% 0.29%
USD Acc (“DHSA”) 0.29% 0.29%
GBP Hedged Acc (“DHSG”) 0.35% 0.35%
EUR Hedged Acc (“DHSF”) 0.35% 0.35%
WisdomTree US SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees % 2020 Management Fees %
USD (“DESE”)** — 0.38%
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees % 2020 Management Fees %
EUR (“EEI”) 0.29% 0.29%
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6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

Management Fees (continued)

WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF
Share classes

EUR Acc (“EEIA”)

2021 Management Fees %
0.29%

WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF

2021 Management Fees %
0.38%
0.38%

Share classes
EUR (“DFE”)
EUR Acc (“DFEA”)

WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF

2021 Management Fees %
0.46%
0.46%

Share classes
USD (“DEM”)
USD Acc (“DEMR”)

WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF
2021 Management Fees %
0.54%

Share classes

USD (“DGSE”)
WisdomTree ISEQ 20® UCITS ETF

Share classes

EUR (“ISEQ”)**

2021 Management Fees %

WisdomTree Germany Equity UCITS ETF
Share classes

GBP Hedged (“DXGP”)**

CHF Hedged Acc (“DXGD”)**

USD Hedged (“DXGE”)**

EUR Acc (“DXGY”)**

2021 Management Fees %

WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees %

USD Hedged (“DXJ”) 0.48%
USD Hedged Acc (“DXJA”) 0.48%
GBP Hedged (“DXIJP”) 0.45%
CHF Hedged Acc (“DXJD”) 0.45%
EUR Hedged Acc (“DXJF”) 0.45%
JPY Acc (“DXJZ”) 0.40%

WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees %

USD Hedged (“HEDJ”) 0.58%
USD Hedged Acc (“HEDK”) 0.58%
GBP Hedged (“HEDP”) 0.35%
CHF Hedged Acc (“HEDD”) 0.35%
EUR Acc (“HEDF”) 0.32%
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2020 Management Fees %
0.29%

2020 Management Fees %
0.38%
0.38%

2020 Management Fees %
0.46%
0.46%

2020 Management Fees %
0.54%

2020 Management Fees %
0.49%

2020 Management Fees %
0.35%
0.35%
0.48%
0.32%

2020 Management Fees %
0.48%
0.48%
0.45%
0.45%
0.45%
0.40%

2020 Management Fees %
0.58%
0.58%
0.35%
0.35%
0.32%
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6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

Management Fees (continued)

WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF
Share classes

GBP (“WUKD”)

2021 Management Fees %
0.29%

WisdomTree Emerging Asia Equity Income UCITS ETF
2021 Management Fees %

Share classes

USD (“DEMA”)**
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees %

USD (“WCOG”) 0.35%
USD Acc (“WCOA”) 0.35%
GBP Hedged Acc (“WCOM”) 0.35%
EUR Hedged Acc (“WCOE”) 0.35%
CHF Hedged Acc (“COMS”) 0.35%

WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

2021 Management Fees %
0.33%
0.33%

Share classes
USD (“DGRW”)
USD Acc (“DGRA™)

WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

2021 Management Fees %
0.38%
0.38%

Share classes
USD (“GGRW”)
USD Acc (“GGRA™)

WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF

2021 Management Fees %
0.29%
0.29%

Share classes
EUR (“EGRW”)
EUR Acc (“EGRA”)

WisdomTree India Quality UCITS ETF
Share classes

USD (“EPIQ”)**

USD Acc (“EPIE”)**

2021 Management Fees %

WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees %

USD (“CCBO”) 0.39%
USD Acc (“COCB”) 0.39%
USD Hedged (“CODO”) 0.39%
EUR Hedged (“COBO”) 0.39%
GBP Hedged (“COGO”) 0.39%

WisdomTree CBOE S&P 500 PutWrite UCITS ETF
Share classes

USD Acc (“PUTW?)##*

2021 Management Fees %
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2020 Management Fees %
0.29%

2020 Management Fees %
0.54%

2020 Management Fees %
0.35%
0.35%
0.35%
0.35%
0.35%

2020 Management Fees %
0.33%
0.33%

2020 Management Fees %
0.38%
0.38%

2020 Management Fees %
0.29%
0.29%

2020 Management Fees %
0.73%
0.73%

2020 Management Fees %
0.50%
0.50%
0.50%
0.50%
0.50%

2020 Management Fees %
0.38%
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6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

Management Fees (continued)

WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF

2021 Management Fees %
0.18%
0.18%

Share classes
EUR (“YLD”)
EUR Acc (“EYLD”)

WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF

Share classes
EUR (“GOVE”)
EUR Acc (“WGOV”)

WisdomTree Japan SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF

Share classes

2021 Management Fees %
0.16%
0.16%

2021 Management Fees %

USD (“DFJ”)** —
USD Acc (“DFJA”)** _

WisdomTree US Multifactor UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees %
USD (“USME”)** —
USD Acc (“FCTR”)** —

WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETF
Share classes

USD Acc (“WTAI”)

2021 Management Fees %
0.40%

WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF

2021 Management Fees %
0.15%
0.15%

Share classes
USD (“USFR”)
USD Acc (“TFRN”)

WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS ETF
Share classes

USD Acc (“WCLD”)

2021 Management Fees %
0.40%

WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF
Share classes

USD Acc (“VOLT”)*

2021 Management Fees %
0.40%

WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS ETF
Share classes

USD Acc (“WCBR?”)##*#*

2021 Management Fees %
0.45%

WisdomTree European Union Bond UCITS ETF
Share classes

EUR Acc (“EUBO”)###%%

2021 Management Fees %
0.16%

WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF
2021 Management Fees %
0.35%

Share classes

EUR Acc (“EXAG”)*##5xx
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2020 Management Fees %
0.18%
0.18%

2020 Management Fees %
0.16%
0.16%

2020 Management Fees %
0.48%
0.48%

2020 Management Fees %
0.30%
0.30%

2020 Management Fees %
0.40%

2020 Management Fees %
0.15%
0.15%

2020 Management Fees %
0.40%

2020 Management Fees %
0.40%

2020 Management Fees %

2020 Management Fees %

2020 Management Fees %
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6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

Management Fees (continued)

WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees % 2020 Management Fees %
USD Acc (“WXAG”)H#k sk 0.35% —
WisdomTree Emerging Markets ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG Screened UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees % 2020 Management Fees %
USD Acc (“XSOE>)*###skx 0.32% —
WisdomTree Broad Commodities UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees % 2020 Management Fees %
USD Acc (“PCOM?” )ik 0.19% —
WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS ETF

Share classes 2021 Management Fees % 2020 Management Fees %
USD Acc (“WDNA? )# sk sdcdowskox 0.45% —
* Launched 26 February 2020.

wox Terminated 8 September 2020.

okok Terminated 11 September 2020.

Ak Launched 25 January 2021.

kA Launched 15 February 2021.

ok ok Launched 7 July 2021.

ok ok Launched 18 August 2021.
wdFHkFE*  Launched 6 October 2021.
*kxkxkkx*  Launched 29 November 2021.
wkksokkssk T aunched 3 December 2021.

The Management Fee for the financial year amounted to EUR 8,964,952 (31 December 2020: EUR
3,983,282). Fees outstanding at 31 December 2021 amounted to EUR 955,692 (31 December 2020: EUR
438,760).

Directors’ Fees

The Directors shall be entitled to a fee payable by the Manager, and remuneration for their services at a
rate to be determined from time to time by the Directors. The fees of any one Director in any one financial
year shall not exceed EUR 30,000 without the approval of the Board. Any Director who holds any
executive office (including, for this purpose, the office of Chairman) or who serves on any committee in
his capacity as a Director of the ICAV, or who otherwise performs services which in the opinion of the
Directors are outside the ordinary duties of a Director or who devotes special attention to the ICAV, may
be paid such extra remuneration as the Directors may determine which shall not exceed EUR 10,000.

The Directors may also be paid, inter alia, for travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by
them in attending meetings of the Directors or in connection with the business of the ICAV.

Independent non-executive Directors’ fees for the financial year amounted to EUR 52,083 (31 December
2020: EUR 50,000) gross of taxes. There were no fees outstanding at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: Nil). The ICAV’s Directors’ fees are payable by the Manager.

Directors of the ICAV, who are also employees of the WisdomTree Group, do not receive any additional
remuneration for their role as Director of the ICAV.
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6. Fees and Expenses (continued)
Directors’ Fees (continued)

All emoluments paid to, or receivable by, the Directors during the financial year are in respect of
qualifying services. Qualifying services, in relation to any person, means his or her services as a director
of the ICAV and his or her services, while director of the ICAV, as director of any of its subsidiary
undertakings or otherwise in connection with the management of the affairs of the ICAV or any of its
subsidiary undertakings.

No cash or value of other assets (including shares but excluding share options) was paid to, or receivable
by, the Directors under long term incentive schemes in respect of qualifying services. No company
contributions were paid, treated as paid, or payable during the financial period/year to a retirement benefit
scheme in respect of directors’ qualifying services. No directors have retirement benefits accruing under
such schemes in respect of qualifying services.

There is no consideration paid to, or receivable by, third parties for making available services of any
person as a director of the Sub-Funds, or otherwise in connection with the Management of the Sub-Fund’s
affairs.

Subscription, Redemption and Switching Fees

The Manager, at its discretion, may charge a subscription fee and/or a redemption fee and/or a switching
fee of up to 3 per cent of the NAV per share subscribed for, or redeemed, or switched. These fees will not
be incurred by the ICAV on behalf of the relevant Sub-Fund, and accordingly will not affect the NAV of
the relevant Sub-Fund. No such fees were charged during the financial year (31 December 2020: None).

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration (including expenses), for all work carried out by the statutory audit firm in respect of
the financial year is as follows:

2021 2020
EUR EUR
Statutory audit of ICAV financial statements 148,509 141,488
Other assurance services - 7,500
Tax advisory services 42,823 72,701

191,332 221,689

Audit fees are shown exclusive of VAT.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are any fees and expenses incurred in buying and selling securities or other investments
held by the Sub-Funds, e.g. brokerage costs and commissions and correspondence fees for transferring
securities or investments or other interests, unless otherwise specified in the Supplements to the
Prospectus.

Transaction costs on purchases and sales transactions are as follows:

Transaction Transaction
costs 2021 costs 2020

EUR EUR
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF 7,199 7,254
WisdomTree US SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF** — 1,637
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF 29,537 43,648
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF 66,149 84,772
WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF 90,416 59,008
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Transaction costs (continued)

Transaction Transaction
costs 2021 costs 2020

EUR EUR
WisdomTree Emergin% Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF 53,836 54,271
WisdomTree ISEQ 20™ UCITS ETF** — 31,143
WisdomTree Germany Equity UCITS ETF** — 1,000
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF 13,281 14,170
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF 72,252 61,010
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF 37,811 49,137
WisdomTree Emerging Asia Equity Income UCITS ETF** — 15,292
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF 11,549 5,179
WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF 130,759 54,087
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF 57,349 23,864
WisdomTree India Quality UCITS ETF** — 11,037
WisdomTree Japan SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF** — 209
WisdomTree US Multifactor UCITS ETF — 565
WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETF 289,797 70,297
WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS ETF 99,845 31,068
WisdomTree Battery Solutions UCITS ETF* 705,721 68,756
WisdomTree Cybersecurity UCITS ETF*** 34,649 —
WisdomTree Emerging Markets ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG Screened
UCITS ETF**** 2,832 —
WisdomTree BioRevolution UCITS ETE**##* 113 —

1,703,095 687,404

* Launched 26 February 2020.
*x Terminated 8 September 2020.
*#%  Launched 25 January 2021.
***%  Launched 18 August 2021.
***%% Launched 3 December 2021.

7. Taxation

Under current law and practice the ICAV qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, the ICAV is not
chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains. However, Irish tax may arise on the happening of a
“chargeable event”. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to shareholders, any
encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of shares, and the holding of shares at the end of each
eight year period beginning with the acquisition of such shares.

No Irish tax will arise on the ICAV in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

a) A shareholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at
the time of the chargeable event, provided appropriate valid declarations in accordance with the
provisions of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, are held by the ICAV, or the [CAV
has been authorised by the Irish Revenue to make gross payments in the absence of appropriate
declarations, and

b) certain exempted Irish tax resident shareholders who have provided the ICAV with the
necessary signed declarations.
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7. Taxation (continued)

The ICAV may be subject to, and/or accrue, withholding, capital gains, transaction-based and other taxes
imposed by certain jurisdictions on its investments. Taxes on foreign interest, dividend income and capital
gains are generally withheld, assessed and/or accrued in accordance with the applicable country’s tax
treaty with Ireland and are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. There are some cases
where the ICAV may not be able to benefit from reduced rates of withholding tax under the provisions of
the double tax treaties which Ireland has entered into with various countries.

In addition, the ICAV and/or shareholders may be subject to taxation and tax reporting obligations in
jurisdictions in which each Sub-Fund makes investments. The ICAV may seek to collect refunds in
respect of taxes paid by each Sub-Fund to certain countries. In those cases, all or a portion of those taxes
could ultimately be recovered. However, the recovery process could take several years and the ICAV will
incur expenses in its efforts to collect such refunds, which will reduce the benefit to the Sub-Funds of any
recovery. The ICAV’s efforts to collect a refund may not be successful, in which case the Sub-Funds will
have incurred additional expenses for no economic benefit. The ICAV’s decision to pursue refunds is in its
sole discretion, and it may decide not to pursue refunds, even if eligible.

8. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Investment Managers, the Manager, the Currency Managers, the
Promoter, the Directors and the Distributors are related parties under IAS 24 “Related Party
Transactions”.

Director Peter Ziemba is an employee of WisdomTree Asset Management, Inc., a subsidiary of
WisdomTree Investments, Inc., which is the ultimate parent of the Manager. Director Amit Muni, who
resigned on 6 May 2021, was an employee of WisdomTree Asset Management, Inc. Director Alexis
Marinof'is an employee of WisdomTree Europe Limited (“WTE”) and Bryan Governey is an employee of
WisdomTree Ireland Limited (“WTIre”). Director Nadia Samuels, who was appointed on 18 February
2021 and resigned on 22 February 2022, is an employee of WTE. WTE and WTlIre are subsidiaries of
WisdomTree Investments, Inc. All Directors of the ICAV are also Directors of the Manager. Anne-Marie
King and Feargal Dempsey were appointed as independent non-executive Directors of the ICAV and
Manager on 1 December 2021 and 19 January 2022, respectively. Feargal Dempsey is also a Director of
WTlIre. Vincent Dodd is an independent non-executive Director of the ICAV and Manager. Denise
Kinsella resigned as independent non-executive Director of the ICAV and Manager on 28 March 2022.

The Directors of the ICAV who are also employees of WisdomTree Asset Management, Inc., WisdomTree
Europe Limited and WisdomTree Ireland Limited are not entitled to receive Directors’ fees. Details of
Directors’ fees, including independent non-executive Directors’ fees, paid during the financial year are
disclosed in Note 6.

With the exception of WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETE, WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond
UCITS ETE, WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETE, WisdomTree EUR
Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Artificial Intelligence UCITS ETEF,
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Cloud Computing UCITS
ETE, WisdomTree European Union Bond UCITS ETFE, WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity
ex-Agriculture UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Emerging Markets ex-State-Owned Enterprises ESG Screened
UCITS ETF and WisdomTree Broad Commodities UCITS ETF, WisdomTree Investments, Inc. has
constructed the indices which are tracked by the Sub-Funds. WisdomTree Management Limited has paid
a licensing fee for the use of these indices.
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8. Related Party Transactions (continued)

At 31 December 2021, the WisdomTree Broad Commodities UCITS ETF invested in the WisdomTree
Physical Gold, which amounted to USD 142,112 (31 December 2020: Nil) and the WisdomTree Physical
Silver, which amounted to USD 37,808 (31 December 2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors held shares in various Sub-Funds with an approximate value of
EUR 607,000 (31 December 2020: EUR 350,000), being less than 2bps (31 December 2020: less than
2bps) of the total NAV of the Sub-Funds.

The Manager’s fees for the financial year amounted to EUR 8,964,952 (31 December 2020: EUR
3,983,282) of which EUR 955,692 (31 December 2020: EUR 438,766) was outstanding at the financial
year end.

As described in Note 6, the Manager is responsible for discharging all operational expenses of the [CAV.
This includes fees for the Administrator, Auditor, Depositary, Distributors and Investment Managers.
Please refer to Note 6 for an explanation of the fee structure of the ICAV and details regarding fees paid to
these related parties.

To the extent that operating expenses paid by the Manager exceed management fees received from the
Sub-Fund, the Manager receives financial support from its ultimate parent, WisdomTree Investments,
Inc.

The subscriber shares are held by WisdomTree UK Limited and WisdomTree Management Limited.

All transactions were entered into in the normal course of business.

9. Soft Commissions/Directed brokerage

There were no soft commission arrangements in place/directed brokerage services utilised as at
31 December 2021 or for the financial year then ended (31 December 2020: None).

10. Distributions

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the following distributions were declared and paid by
the Sub-Funds to holders of redeemable participating shares:

Declared

22 December 2020

Payable

19 January 2021

Ex-Date:

Distribution 4 January 2021

rate per share  Total Distribution

WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF - DEM USD 0.4087 USD 1,055,750

WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF -

DGSE USD 0.2758  USD 449,554
WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS USD 0.1644  USD 121,639
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF - EEI EUR 0.1894  EUR 328,177
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - DFE EUR 0.1259  EUR 202,606
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - DXJ USD 0.1350  USD 157,830
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - DXJP GBP 0.0859 GBP 7,691
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - HEDJ USD 0.1082  USD 120,320
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - HEDP GBP 0.0732 GBP 9,622
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF - WUKD GBP 0.1032  GBP 185,760
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WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF - USD - WCOG
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF -
EUR - EGRW

WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
DGRW

WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
GGRW

WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - USD - CCBO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - CODO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - EUR Hedged - COBO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - COGO
WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS
ETF - EUR - YLD

WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS
ETF - EUR - GOVE

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
DGRW

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS

WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF - EEI
WisdomTree Europe Small Cap Dividend UCITS ETF - DFE
WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF - DEM
WisdomTree Emerging Markets Small Cap Dividend UCITS ETF -
DGSE

WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - DXJ
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Distribution
rate per share

USD 0.0399
EUR 0.1028
USD 0.1140

USD 0.2165
USD 2.7516
USD 2.9642
EUR 2.6672
GBP 2.7413

EUR 0.1645

EUR 0.2415

Distribution
rate per share

USD 0.1459

USD 0.1029

Distribution
rate per share

USD 0.1695
EUR 0.3709
EUR 0.3082
USD 0.2751

USD 0.3202
USD 0.1752

Declared

22 December 2020

Payable

19 January 2021

Ex-Date:
4 January 2021

Total Distribution

USD 22,943
EUR 67,726
USD 49,708

USD 39,762

USD 1,351,258

USD 50,409
EUR 744,245
GBP 94,959

EUR 34,617

EUR 4,808

Declared

25 March 2021
Payable

19 April 2021
Ex-Date:

1 April 2021

Total Distribution

USD 115,975

USD 27,375

Declared

24 June 2021
Payable

16 July 2021
Ex-Date:

1 July 2021

Total Distribution

USD 125,794
EUR 602,612
EUR 544,732
USD 784,615

USD 521,926
USD 123,446
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WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - DXJP
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - HEDJ
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - HEDP
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF - WUKD
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
DGRW

WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
GGRW

WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF -
EUR - EGRW

WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF -
EUR - YLD

WisdomTree EUR Government Bond Enhanced Yield UCITS ETF
- EUR - GOVE

WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - USD - CCBO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - CODO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - EUR Hedged - COBO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - COGO

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
DGRW

Distribution
rate per share

GBP 0.1097
USD 0.2995
GBP 0.1904
GBP 0.1199

USD 0.1089
USD 0.3134
EUR 0.2683
EUR 0.0781
EUR 0.2300
USD 2.7356
USD 2.9060

EUR 2.7443
GBP 2.6505

Distribution
rate per share

USD 0.1783

USD 0.1365

Declared

24 June 2021
Payable

16 July 2021
Ex-Date:

1 July 2021

Total Distribution

GBP 9,822
USD 345,750
GBP 25,029
GBP 232,606
USD 28,971
USD 97,896
EUR 122,699
EUR 15,048

EUR 2,931

USD 1,423,076

USD 194,719

EUR 1,059,399
GBP 1,173,814

Declared

30 September
2021

Payable

22 October 2021

Ex-Date:
7 October 2021

Total Distribution

USD 128,759

USD 31,127

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the following distributions were declared and paid by

the Sub-Funds to holders of redeemable participating shares:

WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF - DEM
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Distribution
rate per share

Declared

23 December 2019

Payable

17 January 2020

Ex-Date:
3 January 2020

Total Distribution

USD 0.4776 USD 1,195,967
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WisdomTree Issuer ICAV

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

10. Distributions (continued)

WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF -
DGSE

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS

WisdomTree US SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - DESE
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF - EEI
WisdomTree Europe Small Cap Dividend UCITS ETF - DFE
WisdomTree Emerging Asia Equity Income UCITS ETF - DEMA
WisdomTree ISEQ™ 20 UCITS ETF - ISEQ

WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - DXJ
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - DXJP
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - HEDJ
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - HEDP
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF - WUKD
WisdomTree Enhanced Commodity UCITS ETF - USD - WCOG
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF -
EUR - EGRW

WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
DGRW

WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
GGRW

WisdomTree India Quality UCITS ETF - USD - EPIQ
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - USD - CCBO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - CODO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - EUR Hedged - COBO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - COGO
WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS
ETF - EUR - YLD

WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS
ETF - EUR - GOVE

WisdomTree Japan SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - USD - DFJ
WisdomTree US Multifactor UCITS ETF - USD - USMF
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF - USD
- USFR
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Distribution
rate per share

USD 0.2997
USD 0.1546
USD 0.1279
EUR 0.1975
EUR 0.1467
USD 0.2753
EUR 0.1758
USD 0.1564
GBP 0.0977
USD 0.0775
GBP 0.0602
GBP 0.1621
USD 0.1595

EUR 0.0605
USD 0.1112

USD 0.1705
USD 0.0784
USD 2.7731
USD 3.0068
EUR 2.9454
GBP 2.8436

EUR 0.2547
EUR 0.2718
USD 0.3722
USD 0.1491

USD 0.1431

Declared

23 December 2019

Payable

17 January 2020

Ex-Date:
3 January 2020

Total Distribution

USD 599,400
USD 263,112

USD 70,985
EUR 577,399
EUR 333,968
USD 309,713
EUR 228,540

USD 1,928,757

GBP 8,748
USD 153,646
GBP 25,372
GBP 272,328
USD 83,738

EUR 21,289
USD 12,249

USD 14,581
USD 6,237

USD 1,268,405

USD 51,134
EUR 184,114
GBP 34,237

EUR 16,430
EUR 5,411
USD 7,444
USD 1,491

USD 5,724
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

10. Distributions (continued)

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS

WisdomTree US SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - DESE
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
DGRW

WisdomTree US Multifactor UCITS ETF - USD - USMF
WisdomTree USD Floating Rate Treasury Bond UCITS ETF - USD
- USFR

WisdomTree Emerging Markets Equity Income UCITS ETF - DEM
WisdomTree Emerging Markets SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF -
DGSE

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS

WisdomTree US SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - DESE
WisdomTree Europe Equity Income UCITS ETF - EEI
WisdomTree Europe SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - DFE
WisdomTree Emerging Asia Equity Income UCITS ETF - DEMA
WisdomTree Germany Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - DXGP
WisdomTree Germany Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - DXGE
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - DXJ
WisdomTree Japan Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - DXJP
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - HEDJ
WisdomTree Europe Equity UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - HEDP
WisdomTree UK Equity Income UCITS ETF - WUKD
WisdomTree Eurozone Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF -
EUR - EGRW

WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
DGRW

WisdomTree Global Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
GGRW

WisdomTree India Quality UCITS ETF - USD - EPIQ
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - USD - CCBO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - USD Hedged - CODO
WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - EUR Hedged - COBO
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Distribution
rate per share

USD 0.1715
USD 0.1708

USD 0.1041
USD 0.2964

USD 0.1448

Distribution
rate per share

USD 0.2001

USD 0.2110
USD 0.1715
USD 0.1619
EUR 0.2286
EUR 0.1577
USD 0.1212
GBP 0.1259
USD 0.2045
USD 0.1623
GBP 0.1088
USD 0.1939
GBP 0.1314
GBP 0.0804

EUR 0.1230
USD 0.1086

USD 0.2105
USD 0.0673
USD 2.7890
USD 3.0447
EUR 2.8080

Declared

26 March 2020
Payable

20 April 2020
Ex-Date:

2 April 2020

Total Distribution

USD 302,443
USD 93,940

USD 8,161
USD 2,964

USD 3,765

Declared

25 June 2020
Payable

17 July 2020
Ex-Date:

2 July 2020

Total Distribution

USD 511,894

USD 343,930
USD 247,905
USD 83,378
EUR 550,404
EUR 329,477
USD 115,139
GBP 36,279
USD 16,226
USD 255,676
GBP 9,742
USD 254,499
GBP 18,587
GBP 168,840

EUR 63,699
USD 15,573

USD 38,488
USD 13,766

USD 1,558,761

USD 21,331
EUR 604,944
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10. Distributions (continued)

Declared
25 June 2020
Payable
17 July 2020
Ex-Date:
Distribution 2 July 2020
rate per share  Total Distribution

WisdomTree AT1 CoCo Bond UCITS ETF - GBP Hedged - COGO GBP 2.9884 GBP 55,405
WisdomTree EUR Aggregate Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS

ETF - EUR - YLD EUR 0.2051 EUR 12,396
WisdomTree EUR Government Bond ESG Enhanced Yield UCITS

ETF - EUR - GOVE EUR 0.2642 EUR 5,260
WisdomTree Japan SmallCap Dividend UCITS ETF - USD - DFJ USD 0.5327 USD 10,654
WisdomTree US Multifactor UCITS ETF - USD - USMF USD 0.1406 USD 1,406
Declared

24 September

2020

Payable

16 October 2020

Ex-Date:

Distribution 1 October 2020
rate per share  Total Distribution

WisdomTree US Equity Income UCITS ETF - DHS USD 0.1583  USD 173,420
WisdomTree US Quality Dividend Growth UCITS ETF - USD -
DGRW USD 0.1051 USD 81,494

11. Financial Risks

Introduction

The Sub-Funds’ activities expose them to a variety of financial risks including marke